
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting   
November 6, 2017 

Agenda 
 

                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Parking Enforcement- Fire Lanes – Phil Crowell (20 minutes) 
B. Street Lights – Derek Boulanger (30 minutes) 
C. Accepting the Deed to 25 Dell Court – Dan Goyette (10 minutes) 
D. Executive Session, regarding an economic development matter (Pan Am Land Acquisition), pursuant to 1 

M.R.S.A. 405 (6)(C).  
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Pross 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one 
motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If 
requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the 
agenda.   

 
1. Order 99-11062017* 

Confirming Chief Crowell’s appointment of John Banville as Constable without firearm for the Auburn 
Police Department. 
 

2. Order 100-11062017* 

Accepting the transfer of $1,940.00 forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn 
Police Department (Unified Criminal Court Docket No. CR-17-1847 Dennis Roman). 
 

3. Order 101-11062017* 

Accepting the transfer of $3,295.00 forfeiture assets in Rem ($1,087.35 in U.S. Currency) to the 
Auburn Police Department (Unified Criminal Court Docket No. CR-17-1660 Cain Robertson). 
 

4. Order 102-11062017* 

Approving the temporary sign request for the Auburn Ski Association’s annual Ski Swap. 
 

5. Order 103-11062017* 

Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the November 7, 2017 Election. 
 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

II.          Minutes – October 16, 2017 Regular Council Meeting 
  

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 

 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

City business which is not on this agenda.   
                                      
V.          Unfinished Business  

 

1. Ordinance 11-10162017 
Amending Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual 
Adjustment of Maximum Benefits, Appendices A, B, C, and D effective 10/01/2017 to 9/30/2018. 
Second reading. 
 

2. Ordinance 12-10162017 
Amending the General Assistance Ordinance Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-21 (d) 
Information from other sources; and Chapter 24, Article II, Division 4, Sub division II, Sec. 24-161 
(*)(h) Determination of family members’ ability to pay. Second reading. 
 

3. Order 95-10162017 

Authorizing Staff to proceed with the discontinuance of a section of the Troy Street Right of 
Way. 
 

4. Order 96-10162017 
Authorizing $110,000 in HOME funds be reserved for the Troy Street workforce housing project. 

  
5. Order 97-10162017 

Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Auburn and the Auburn Business Development Corporation. 

 
VI.      New Business  

 

6. Public Hearing - CDBG substantial amendment  
 

7. Order 104-11062017 
Appointing Amy Dieterich to the Board of Assessment Review as a full member with a term expiration of 
10/01/2022. 

 
8. Order 105-11062017 

Appointing Shelly Norton to the Conservation Commission with a term expiration of 06/01/2020. 
 

9. Order 106-11062017 
Reappointing Bruce Richardson, Christopher Gendron, and Courtney McDonough to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals, each as full members with a term expiration of 10/01/2020. 
 

10. Order 107-11062017 
Approving the Liquor license for Tin Tin Buffet located at 120 Center Street, Suite 202. Public hearing.  
 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

11. Order 108-11062017 
Authorizing staff to request proposals for the History Trail Signage project, and to utilize up to $25,000 of 
existing Wayfinding funds for the project. 
 

12. Ordinance 13-11062017 
Amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 60 (Zoning), Sec. 60-2 (Definitions). Public hearing and 
first reading. 
 

13. Resolve 04-11062017 
Authorizing the City Auburn to Join a Lawsuit Against Opiate Drug Companies. 
 

VII. Reports 
  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

d. Finance Director, Jill Eastman – September 2017 Monthly Finance Report 

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX. Executive Session  

A. Executive Session, regarding labor negotiations (Police - MAP), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405 (6)(D).  
 
X. Adjournment 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the 
Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at 
the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of 
the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of 
charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions: 

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and 
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 
education is paid from public funds, as long as: 

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 
therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive 
or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 
agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if 
both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or 
other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records is 
prohibited by statute;  

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 
between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review 
of examinations with the person examined; and  

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 
1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

Council Meeting Date:  October 16, 2017  
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Revise City Ordinance 52 Sec. 35 – Fire lanes on private property may be established by agreement. 
 
Information:  The Auburn Police Department recommends the revision of City of Auburn Ordinance 52 Sec. 35 to 
become compliant with National Fire Protection Association’s NFPA 1:18.2.3.5, Marking of Fire Apparatus Access Road.  
The current ordinance only requires painted fire lanes on private property lots.  This revision will require that signs or 
other approved notices be provided and maintained to identify fire department access roads or to prohibit the 
obstruction of fire lanes.  The installation of signs will make fire lanes more identifiable particularly during inclement 
weather. 
 

The proposed revised ordinance language would read as follows: 

   Sec. 52-35. - Fire lanes on private property may be established by agreement. 

The chief of police may enter into agreements with the owners of private property to which members of the 

public are invited regarding the establishment of fire lanes when the parking of motor vehicles or other 

obstructions would be likely to interfere with the ingress or egress of fire department vehicles for the 

protection of persons and property. Such agreements shall be in writing and kept on file at the city police 

station so long as they remain in effect and shall specify the locations of the fire lanes in question. Fire lanes 

shall also be clearly identified with paint or ground markings and signs prohibiting obstruction by motor 

vehicles or otherwise. Proper identification guidelines shall be followed pursuant to NFPA 1:18:2.3.5, 

Marking of Fire Apparatus Access Road. Violations of the fire lane agreements shall be civil violations and 

shall be enforced by the city police department in the same manner as violations of city ordinances regulating 

on-street parking of vehicles.  

(Code 1967, § 26-2.7)  

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

Staff Recommended Action: The Chief of Police recommends revision to City Ordinance 52 Sec. 35 – Fire lanes on 
Private property may be established by agreement. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: n/a 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

 Memo to Mayor and City Council 
 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   October 6, 2017  
 

To:   Mayor LaBonte and Members of the City Council 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  REVISION OF CITY OF AUBURN ORDINANCE 52 SEC. 35 – FIRE LANES ON 

PRIVATE PROPERTY MAY BE ESTABLISHED BY AGREEMENT.   

Currently, City of Auburn Ordinance 52 Sec. 35 – Fire lanes on private property may be established by 

agreement only requires that fire lanes be identified by paint on the ground or curb.  Patrons of local 

businesses park closest to the building during inclement weather without consideration of the need to 

maintain a clear fire lane(s). 

 

The Auburn Police Department seeks a revision to the ordinance, as per National Fire Protection 

Association NFPA 1:18.2.3.5, Marking of Fire Apparatus Access Road.  This revision would require approved 

signs or other approved notices to be provided and maintained to identify fire department access roads or 

to prohibit the obstruction thereof or both. 

 

The proposed revised ordinance language would read as follows: 

 

Sec. 52-35. - Fire lanes on private property may be established by agreement. 

The chief of police may enter into agreements with the owners of private property to which members of the 

public are invited regarding the establishment of fire lanes when the parking of motor vehicles or other 

obstructions would be likely to interfere with the ingress or egress of fire department vehicles for the 

protection of persons and property. Such agreements shall be in writing and kept on file at the city police 

station so long as they remain in effect and shall specify the locations of the fire lanes in question. Fire lanes 

shall also be clearly identified with paint or ground markings and signs prohibiting obstruction by motor 

vehicles or otherwise. Proper identification guidelines shall be followed pursuant to NFPA 1:18:2.3.5, 

Marking of Fire Apparatus Access Road. Violations of the fire lane agreements shall be civil violations and 

shall be enforced by the city police department in the same manner as violations of city ordinances regulating 

on-street parking of vehicles.  

(Code 1967, § 26-2.7)  

 



Page 2 

 

 

 

  

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE  
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby approves the language revision to City of Auburn 
Ordinance Chapter 52 Sec.35 – Fire lanes on private property may be established by agreement. 
 

The chief of police may enter into agreements with the owners of private property to which 
members of the public are invited regarding the establishment of fire lanes when the parking of 
motor vehicles or other obstructions would be likely to interfere with the ingress or egress of 
fire department vehicles for the protection of persons and property. Such agreements shall be 
in writing and kept on file at the city police station so long as they remain in effect and shall 
specify the locations of the fire lanes in question. Fire lanes shall also be clearly identified with 
paint or ground markings and signs prohibiting obstruction by motor vehicles or otherwise. 
Proper identification guidelines shall be followed pursuant to NFPA 1:18:2.3.5, Marking of 
Fire Apparatus Access Road. Violations of the fire lane agreements shall be civil violations and 
shall be enforced by the city police department in the same manner as violations of city 
ordinances regulating on-street parking of vehicles.  

(Code 1967, § 26-2.7)  

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017 
 
Author:  Derek Boulanger, Facilities Manager/ Purchasing Agent 
 

Subject:  The purchase of utility owned community street light system and conversion to LED fixtures.  
 
Information:  The City’s approximately 1250 street lights are currently owned and maintained by Central Maine Power. 
The current inventory is comprised of aging and inefficient technology.  The purchase of these light fixtures would allow 
the City to convert the fixtures to efficient LED technology.  This conversion would reduce the annual electricity 
consumption from street lights by an estimated 61% and would reduce annual electricity costs related to street lights by 
an estimated 85%. 
 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: No impact to the current budget, any debt service will be covered by the reduction in electricity 
costs; additional savings will be utilized to reduce electricity expenditures in future budgets. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Enter into an agreement with RealTerm Energy for the LED Street Light Conversion Project.   
$81,000 in available funds as part of the FY 2018 CIP will be utilized to begin the project.  The remaining funds needed 
will be requested through a Bond Order at a later date. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Budget meetings: fiscal year 2013- 2014. 
$750,000 was bonded in FY2014 and was reallocated to other projects.  Issues with rules and regulations at the State 
level prevented this project from moving forward at that time.  These issues have been resolved allowing the project to 
now move forward. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
 

 Real Term Presentation 

 Real Term Proposal 

 Request for Qualifications - Conversion of community street light system to LED fixtures and from utility 
owned to municipally owned and maintained fixtures on utility owned poles. Cities of Rockland, South 
Portland and Biddeford, and Town of Falmouth, Maine 

 



Conversion of Town Street Light System to LED Fixtures and 
from Utility Owned to Municipally Owned and Maintained 
Fixtures onUtility Owned Poles 

Auburn , ME 
November 6, 2017 



AGENDA 

INTRODUCTIONS     

DISCUSSION 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
INFORMATION 

1 

OUR APPROACH 



Town of 
St. Agatha 

Maine 

Town of 
Ft. Fairfield 

Maine 

Town of 
Ft. Kent 
Maine 

Town of 
Dover-Foxcroft 

Maine 

Town of 
Grand Isle 

Maine 

Town of 
Island Falls 

Maine 

Town of 
Limestone 

Maine 

Town of 
Mapleton 

Maine 

Town of 
Washburn 

Maine 

PROJECTS AWARDED IN MAINE 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3 



4 SAVINGS SUMMARY 

CURRENT STATUS  BEFORE 
UPGRADE 

POST 
UPGRADE VARIANCE PERCENT 

Number of Fixtures 1253 1,253     

Annual Electricity 
Consumption  (kWh) 644,858 249,640 395,218 61% 

Annual Electricity Costs $233,815  $34,244  $199,571  85% 

Annual Maintenance 
Cost $0  $10,024 ($10,024)   

Total Street Lights 
Expenditures $233,815  $44,268  $189,547  81% 

Average Annual Cost 
per Fixture $187  $35  $151  81% 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Eversource currently owns the lights in New Britain and the Municipality is enrolled under Rate 116 Tariff-Street and Security Lighting. Once the Municipality acquires the lights, Rate 117-Partial Street Lighting Service will be in effect for the ~5,788 fixtures (5,335 Cobras and 453 Flood/Area lights and Decorative luminaires) in the inventory. To determine the energy and maintenance savings that will result from the conversion of the Municipality’s street lights to LED technology, the following data and assumptions were used:The total demand was derived using the inventory provided in the excel attachment “3929 New Britain Street Light Inventory” by adding the wattage of each luminaireBy multiplying each wattage type by the fixture quantity ((Wattage type x quantity / 1000 = total demand (kW))The total operating hours per rate 116 and 117 is 4,150 hours annually. This information is needed to obtain the annual consumption before and after the retrofitUnder rate 116, the total Eversource charge per kWh is $0.03609 while the generation charge is $0.08413.  Under rate 117, the total Eversource charge per kWh is $0.03588 while the generation charge is $0.08413.Under rate 116, all Eversource charges include the maintenance and operation of the street lights. The savings from the change in tariff 116 to 117 were obtained by calculating the difference between the energy cost using 116 tariff versus 117 using the existing.Total Estimated Rate 117 Savings were obtained by calculating the difference in energy cost using Tariff 117 before (HID) and after the conversion (LED).Estimated LED Maintenance cost post retrofit is $4.20 per fixture annually for the first year, per maintenance program presented.



5 

OUR APPROACH 



VALUE ADDED SERVICES 

• Lux Mapping – Identify and measure lighting deficiencies pre-conversion 
and degradation post-conversion 

• LED lighting samples – Test various fixture types and color temperatures to 
better define the look and feel of the LED solution 

• Smart Control/Smart City Pilot –  Evaluate benefits of adaptive controls, 
video monitoring and environmental sensors. 

6 



7 A COMPLETE TURNKEY SOLUTION 

GIS Data Collection Photometric Design Investment Grade Audit 

Installation &  
 Project Management 

Incentive work and 
Billing Changes  

Final  
Commissioning 

Measurement & 
 Verification 



STREET LIGHT ACQUISITION PROCESS 

Request  
Purchase Price 

PROCESS 

Determine if 
Further Action is 

Warranted 

Evaluate Price 
Offered 

Request specific information 

Evaluate information and 
complete independent 

calculations 

Provide protective language 
in Agreements 

Proceed with Project 

YES 

NO 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Basis is the Net Book ValueData set available varies by utilitySome room for negotiation



9 

GIS Data 
Collection 

• Fixture Type 

• Fixture Wattage 

• Fixture Height 

• Road Width 

• Pole Setback 

• Pole Material 

• Wire Location 

• # Traffic Lanes 

• Road Classification 

• Pedestrian Traffic 

• Intersections 

• Color (if Decorative) 

• Street Name 

• Pole ID + Ownership 

• Comments 

A ROBUST INVENTORY INCLUDES: 



10 

GIS Data 
Collection 

• Used for both the street light audit 
and installation phases. 

• The app interface is fully 
customizable allowing fields of data 
to be modified to meet all User’s 
needs. 

• The app can be served over any 
smart phone or handheld surveying 
devise. 

• Collected data accuracy is +/- 3 ft. 
• Collected data is synced in near 

real-time to an online server. 
• Access to the audit and installation 

phases can be shared throughout 
allowing remote tracking of work 
progress. 

GIS DATA COLLECTION PROPRIETARY SOFTWARE 



11 REVIEW OF GIS DATA 



12 ASSET MANAGEMENT: DIGITAL RECORD KEEPING  



13 BEFORE AND AFTER 

“LED lighting is an energy-efficient way to illuminate streets. But it’s important to 
direct the light only where it’s needed to support visibility, safety, and the health of 
humans and other living creatures; and to limit glare for pedestrians, bicyclists, and 
drivers.”  (AMA 2016) 



14 

    ONE FOR ONE DESIGN OPTIMIZATION 

  REPLACEMENT OF A 100W HPS 

 60W LED 

 Distribution pattern not 

considered 

 50-55% energy savings 

 RP-8-14 compliance: unknown 

 Over lit areas will remain over lit  

 43W LED 

 Distribution pattern considered 

 65% energy savings 

 RP-8-14 compliance known 

 Less light trespass 

 Lighting to suit the location 

Proper design approach can reduce  
your overall project costs by up to 15% 

100W 
+20W-30W 

ballast 

* See Design White Paper for more details.  

IMPORTANCE OF DESIGN: LCC Savings 



15 

 

I 

4000K 
(103W) 

3000K 
(72W) 

3000K 
(64W) 

3000K 
(51W) 

IMPORTANCE OF DESIGN:  
COLOR TEMPERATURE, VISUAL ACUITY, AND SAFETY  
 



16 PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT 



17 LIVE TRACKING SHARED VIA THE WEB 

 
 
 
 

Real time 
tracking of 
installation 

details:  
 
• Sectors 
• Locations 
• Materials 
• Crews  

 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Suggested wording:  We enable you to track the installation progress in real time so that at any moment, you can track what sector the crews are working in, right down to what light they’re working on, what work is being done on each light (wiring/fusing, etc.) and even which crew is performing the work.



Staging and logistics 
for installation 

Health &  safety  Planning of 
installation routes 

Traffic management 
plan 

Environmental 
management plan 

Communications & 
public outreach 

Final inspection & 
sign-off of work 

INSTALLATION AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT 18 



INSTALLATION AND PM BEST PRACTICES 19 

 

• Plan and prepare for delivery, unloading, storage, 

and recycling of old fixtures 

• Utilize initial inventory and designs to plan routes, 

equip installers with App 

• Incorporate construction and road maintenance 

schedules (parades, etc.) into plans in advance 

• Experience working with over 50 utilities in 

eastern North America 

 



INSTALLATION AND PM BEST PRACTICES 20 

• Kick-off meeting between Muni, 

Installers, and PM clarify scope, 

expectations, and reporting cycles 

• Training and expert presence at initial 

stages crucial 

• Random inspections ensure installers do 

quality job throughout 



21 

Open house Press releases Website updates 

Live tracking of 
installation 

Continuous 
Communications 

Answering 
resident 

complaints 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH 



22 FIXTURE PROCUREMENT PROCESS 

Fixture Selection 

We complete all 
administrative and 
logistical tasks 
relating to the 
procurement of the 
fixtures.  

Audit & Design 

Color Temperature 

Procurement We can specify 
the color 
temperatures as 
required 

The chosen 
fixture (Acuity) 
meets or 
exceeds the 
requirements 
included in the 
RFP. 

Site-specific 
needs and 
requirements are 
fine-tuned 
during the audit 
and design 
processes.  



23 

FINANCING 



24 VALUE ADDED: MULTIPLE FINANCE OPTIONS 

Energy 
Performance 

Contract 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 

Tax-Exempt 
Lease 

Purchase 

Incentives & 
Grants 



25 SMART CONTROLS 



26 SMART CITIES 

Smart Parking 

Waste 
Management 

Camera 

Electronic  
Advertising 

EV Charger 

Air Quality Monitoring 

Irrigation 

Snow  
removal 



27 

DISCUSSION 



201 West Street,  
Suite 200 

Annapolis, MD 

Contacts:  
Paul Vesel 

Mark Carter 
 

1.866.522.5202 info@realtermenergy.com / 
realtermenergy.com 



29 

APPENDICES 
Company Background and other Additional Information 



30 

STREETLIGHT INFRASTRUCTURE IS OLD AND 
SOMETIMES NEGLECTED 

 
• Most streetlight 

infrastructure has been 
neglected for 20+ years.  

 
• Trouble-shooting should 

evolve with new 
scenarios.  
 



Laying the Smart City 
Network can start 
with selection of the 
right photocell 
receptacle 



32 WHY SWITCH TO LED STREETLIGHTS? 

Get ahead of a legislative 
/ regulatory imperative 

 

Spend your operating 
budget elsewhere 

• Life expectancy 15-20 years 

• Safer streets & less light pollution when 
properly designed   

• Community / Sustainability leadership  

• Spend less time and money on a fairly 
nuisance piece of utility infrastructure   

 

70 to 80% 
Maintenance Savings 



33 BENEFITS: MAINTENANCE SAVINGS 

Negligible failure rates (~0.5%) 

Reduced work orders and truck rolls 

Optimized resource allocation 

Reduced repair response time 

City of Los Angeles: 187 failures on 98,000 lights over 3 years 
 
RealTerm Energy: 14 failures on 100,000+ lights installed 



34 

USE CASES FOR LED LIGHTING THAT HAVE HAD A 
NEGATIVE IMPACT HUMAN HEALTH 

 

1. If you are a lab technician working directly with blue light LED chips without 
an optical lens 

2. If you are 6.5 feet away from a 4000k+ streetlight and stare at for 2.5 hours   

 
LED lighting should be used with the same prudence with which we use any 
other technology. LED lighting should be selected, designed and installed in a 
way that maximizes energy efficiency while minimizing glare, wasted light and 
blue wavelength content.  

 



35 A BALANCED PLAN 

• While some recent media reports have focused on LEDs, it is important to note that 
these issues are neither new nor restricted to LED technology. Blue light is emitted 
by all lights regardless of source type. Further, the proposed remedy – opt for a 
lower CCT light – is overly simplistic from both a public health and a public lighting 
point of view. 

• RTE’s team of lighting experts utilize a recently developed circadian stimulus 
(CS) calculator to select light sources and light levels that will minimize the impact 
on acute melatonin suppression, a marker of circadian system activation. 

• RTE will work with City staff to select fixtures that balance CS factors with energy 
efficiency, color rendition, visual acuity, and other critical safety and maintenance 
factors. 



ABOUT US 



“SAVING 
ENERGY   

WE CAN’T 
AFFORD TO 

WASTE” 

37 

OUR VISION 
We harness and integrate innovative and sustainable 
technologies that will allow people to live and work in 
smarter, safer and more energy-efficient communities 
for generations to come. 

OUR MISSION 



38 OUR COMPANY 



39 

RTE is a North American 
leader in providing energy-
efficient, turnkey LED street 

lighting conversions for 
municipalities and utilities 

Realterm owns 
and manages a 
global portfolio 
of assets 
valued at over 
$3 billion.  

Our parent company, Realterm, has a 25-
year history of real asset and infrastructure 
development focused on transportation and 
delivery of goods and services across the 

entire supply chain around the globe. 



40 EXPERIENCE WITH TURNKEY CONVERSION PROJECTS 

 

 
REGOGNIZED AS AMONG  

THE BEST PRACTICES  
IN THE WORLD 

>170 communities have chosen RealTerm Energy            
for their LED conversion 

180,000+ fixtures sold to date  
 Projects from 14 to >10,000 fixtures 

 

Over 110,000 fixtures installed  
  

40+ full and part-time Municipal  
LED streetlight professionals 

Financing Options Available 



41 RTE STREETLIGHT PROJECTS 

7 US STATES 3 CANADIAN PROVINCES 



Cities of Rockland, South Portland and Biddeford, and  
Town of Falmouth, Maine 

 
Request for Qualifications - Conversion of community street light system to LED fixtures 
and from utility owned to municipally owned and maintained fixture on utility owned 
poles.  

January 28, 2016 

 

The four communities are inviting qualified companies to submit proposals for the design and implementation of 
community-wide street light enhancements and conversions to LED fixtures.  Proposals must be submitted no 
later than 2:00 PM on February 25, 2016.  

 

I. GENERAL 
 

A. Project Background  
 

Maine’s municipalities incur significant annual costs related to street lighting.  Through this  
RFQ, the participating municipalities “PM” are interested in selecting a service provider to  
assist them in reducing streetlight costs by retrofitting their streetlights to LED technology.  
The PM anticipate that the scope of work may include street lights mounted to utility  
owned poles, decorative streetlights, parking facility lighting, lighting controls, etc., in the  
LED conversion process. A profile of each participating municipality is included in Attachment A. 
Detailed billing for all street lights attached to utility poles is also attached. 

 

B. Scope of Services    
 

PM are seeking proposals from qualified service providers (referred to variously as  
“proposer”, “firm”, or “contractor”) This proposal is to be a turn-key proposal that includes:  
undertaking an IGA (Investment Grade Audit) of the street lights and their attributes,  
performing an independent and certified lighting design analysis which includes designing  
each unique street to either an RP 8-14 standards where applicable or at a standard to be  
specified; providing a comprehensive financial analysis to indicate ROI (Return On  
Investment), savings and payback period; completing all applicable incentive applications;  
carrying out all procurement requirements; applying on behalf of the PM for all  
available grants and rebates relating to the LED conversion project; performing project  
management functions; undertaking or overseeing  the LED luminaire installation and the  
recycling/disposal of all waste material; and identifying any Financing Options that the  
supplier can provide. The service provider must also demonstrate experience in performing  
street light acquisitions from Electric Utilities or submit a detailed approach to how best  
perform an acquisition and the options associated with an acquisition.  

 

C. Non‐Compete  
 

PM plan to select a firm that will provide the services requested in this RFQ, including but not limited 
to LED streetlight conversions and streetlight maintenance services for public entities in Maine. If 
selected, the firm shall agree to provide such services to Maine municipalities, individually or 
collectively.  



2 | P a g e  

 

 
D. Conflict of Interest  

 
PM seek to work with firms that represent consumers, not suppliers, avoiding both the appearance, 
as well as any actual conflict of interest.    Any subsequent disclosure of a conflict of interest after 
the award has been made, but which existed at the time of proposal submission, will be grounds for 
termination of any resulting contract 

 

II. PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 
Proposals must be submitted in the following format using the numbering sequence outlined below. 
This is the minimum information to be provided and will be used in the evaluation process. Proposals 
are to be limited to a maximum of 25 pages excluding addendums 
 

A. Covering Letter 

 
A covering letter signed by an authorized representative of the company of Proposer shall outline 

the intent of the response and shall state that the information contained in the Proposal accurately 

describes the services to be provided 

 
B. Company Profile 

 

 Provide a description of the Proposer’s company or business, purpose, history and successes, 

including the number of years in LED street lighting business and major successes. 

 List any similar projects, the client/owner, and the approximate value of the work. 

 List similar partnerships with municipalities including collaborations with groupings of 

municipalities to carry out LED lighting upgrades 

 Extensive knowledge of relevant legislation, standards, including the knowledge of available 

grants and rebate programs 

 Describe any unique technologies pertinent to improving street lighting projects 

 Knowledge of local municipal operations and maintenance requirements 

 Experience in assisting municipalities with evaluation and acquisition of their streetlights 

from electric utilities. 

 
C. Key Personnel 

 
Identify key personnel that would be employed for this program and provide a detailed resume/CV 

of their relevant experience, education & successes. Key personnel should demonstrate ample 

experience in managing turn-key street lighting projects. 

 
D. References 

 
Include a list of at least three (3) projects that the Proposer has successfully completed an LED 

retrofit and provide associated references and contact information for the persons or organizations 



3 | P a g e  

 

that engaged the Proposer. By submitting a proposal, the Proposer consents to PM contacting these 

references, and consents to PM also contacting any other organization for the purposes of 

evaluating the Proposal. 

 

E. Approach 

 
Describe the approach and/or process proposed to address the project requirements. Include any 
notable methodologies, tools and techniques, and their respective suitability to this project. Also 
provide a project plan that reflects your proposed approach/process and demonstrates your ability 
to meet the milestones. 

 
The following key components must be included in the approach description: 

 
1. Audit  

 
The provider will determine the existing street and outdoor light inventory via a Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) inventory assessment of all the streetlights and 
outdoor lights included in the project.  The provider should list the attributes that they collect 
and describe how they relate to the design process. 
 
During the inventory assessment, the provider will report and review all issues with the PM 
weekly so that the PM may begin to address them in order to minimize any delay on the eventual 
conversion. 
 
The proponent must produce an electronic inventory file suitable for use in common GIS 
software (e.g. ESRI ArcMap), as well as Microsoft Excel, that contains the required attributes. 
 
Based on the inventory, utility bill analysis, and consultation on controls and/or other products, 
the Proposer will develop an Audit Report which will include: 
 

 Deficiencies in the current street lighting network 

 Baseline energy use, energy cost and operations & maintenance costs 

 Estimated retrofit energy use and operations & maintenance costs 

 Estimated sources of funding, including rebates 

 Calculation of estimated total conversion cost (remaining design tasks, product, and 

installation), energy reduction, and simple payback 

 
The PM seeks Proposers who can provide the strongest case for why their Audit will be most 
accurate and support approval by the PM.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  

 

 
2. Financial stability  

 

 Proposer should demonstrate the capacity to finance street lighting projects by having 

financed or been part of a financing project using an Energy Savings Performance 

Contract (ESPC). 

 

 Should the PM opt for this type of financing, the Proposer must produce an ESPC contract 

at the time opt in.   

 
3. Design   

 

The design of an LED network will have a measurable impact on both the life cycle savings as well 

as overall light quality. Proposers must include a design component in the scope of work.  

 
The determination of adequate light levels for safety of pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles is 
guided by the Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) Standard for Roadway Lighting (RP-8-14). The 
PM recognizes that existing pole placement limits the degree to which IES standards may be met. 
The PM will look favorably upon proposals that use design methodologies that will best deliver 
adequate lighting through the PM for the expected life of the products and the PM’s desire for 
specific goals associated with customized lighting levels. IES standards may not be the standard 
selected by the PM. Additionally, the designer should incorporate an analysis of the following 
data points to identify target areas that may need special consideration: 

 

 Pedestrian/vehicle and bicycle/vehicle crash data for the last 5 years to identify areas 

where light levels and/or spacing have affected public safety. 

 Important localized land uses (e.g. parks, schools, hospitals, etc.) 

 Relative volumes of pedestrian and bicycle activity 

 Unique neighborhood characteristics 

 
The provider should describe their design process, including how actual light levels are measured 
before & after the conversion, and how designs are modified for unique street characteristics. 
 
4. Project Management  

 

Proposers shall describe their approach to Project Management and how this will impact cost, 

quality control and timing of the project.  

 

 Qualifications and experience of Project Team 

 Experience in projects managing multiple projects simultaneously 

 Experience in projects managing large LED retrofits (over 1,000 fixtures) 

 Detailed description on how the project will be managed including: 

 



5 | P a g e  

 

- A description of the methods to be employed in the performance and coordination of 

the work that will control the scope, quality, schedule and cost of the Project 

- The anticipated risks and assumptions that will be part of completing the Project 

- Any special challenges or considerations foreseen by the Proposer and proposed 

solutions for each. 

 

5. Technology Procurement  

 

a. Fixtures 

Describe the process for selecting appropriate fixtures.   

The Proposers should develop complete and detailed specifications for LED Luminaires to 
replace lighting fixtures. The specifications will be non-proprietary performance 
specifications describing all relevant photometric, electrical, physical, and durability 
characteristics of the luminaires.  
 
The Proposer should provide details on their method of developing specifications and 
how that ensures that appropriate quality standards are met. 
 

b. Smart Controls and other Smart City solutions 

The Proposer will advise the PM on the use of controls in terms of impact on safety, 
standardization, and energy and cost savings. The Proposer should be able to present 
analysis of how controls could impact the total lifecycle costs of the system. The Proposer 
should also propose to the PM any other value-add systems and discuss with the PM their 
financial impacts, commercial readiness, and alignment with utility policies. 
 
The Proposer will demonstrate their knowledge and ability to advise municipalities on 
different Smart City applications to add on to their existing street light infrastructure. 
 

6. Installation & Maintenance  

 
Based on the finalized design, the Proposer will describe their approach to installation and 
maintenance or oversight as an owner representative. The following elements should be 
covered:  

 
- Description of Work 

- Required installation schedule 

- Reference standards 

- Submittals 

- Quality Assurance and Warranty 

- Installation 

- Field Quality Control 

- Adjusting and Cleaning 

- Disposal 
 



6 | P a g e  

 

7. Construction Administration  

 
The Proposer will describe their approach to Construction Administration including the following: 

 
- Perform a sampling of spot-checks on installed lights to ensure proper installation 

procedures are being followed, especially at the beginning of the project 

- Manage data on installations and provide a weekly status update of the of the project 

- Confirmation of satisfactory installation completion by install contractor 

 

8. Acquisition of Streetlights 

 
The Proposer will describe their experience and methodology for assisting municipalities in 
acquiring their streetlights.  

 
9. Rebates/Incentives 

 

The Proposer will describe their experience and approach to managing rebates/incentives for 

streetlights on behalf of municipalities.  

F. Value Added Services 
 

The Proposer has the opportunity to propose value added services or products and detail what the 
Proposer is prepared to supply as part of the contract.  

 
G. Additional Information 

 
The proposer may provide any other information that may be relevant for the review and evaluation 
of the prospective vendor’s experience or capabilities. 

 
H. Project Schedule 

 
The selected Proposer shall be expected to begin work immediately upon contract signing and 
complete the tasks in their entirety within a reasonable yet aggressive schedule. The dates below 
indicate desired dates for the completion of project milestones however the PM anticipates 
guidance from the selected Proposer to refine the project schedule. 

  

 January 28, 2016 Issue RFP 

 February 8, 2016 11:00 AM EST - Pre-bid meeting (Falmouth Town Hall, 271 Falmouth 
Road, Falmouth Maine or via conference call by dialing 207- 699-5399. All participants who plan 
to use the conference call to attend the meeting must pre register with Nathan Poore by e-mail at 
npoore@falmouthme.org.) 

 February 25, 2016 Deadline for Submission of Proposals 

 March 1, 2016  Interviews with lead proposer(s) 

 March 3, 2016  Select consultant 

 March-May 2016 Meet with staff, utility and other stakeholders 

 April 2016  Audit 

mailto:npoore@falmouthme.org


7 | P a g e  

 

 May-June 2016 Design and product selection 

 July 2016 – Aug 2017 Installation 
 

I. Submission 
 

Nine (9) paper copies and four digital copies of the proposal must be submitted. No facsimile or e-
mail submissions will be considered. Please submit the electronic copy as a disc or thumb drive in 
PDF format and enclose with your paper copies. Submission delivery instructions – see Section K. 

 
J. Proposer Selection 
 
At its discretion, the Municipalities may select a firm outright or select a finalist(s) for in-person 
interviews. The Municipalities reserve the right to negotiate directly with the firm selected for 
additional project work at a negotiated contract for services.  The Municipalities reserve the right to 
accept or reject any or all proposals for any reason, to negotiate with any individual or firm and to 
select one or more of the proposals. Attachment B includes a table that identifies the selection 
criteria which will be used to rank proposals. 

 
K. Questions 

 
The Town of Falmouth will administer all aspects of this RFQ. Questions regarding this RFQ may be 
directed, in writing, to Nathan Poore, Town Manager, Falmouth Maine via e-mail at 
npoore@falmouthme.org. All submitted inquiries and responses will be posted to the Town of 
Falmouth web site in an area dedicated to bids/RFP/RFQ http://www.falmouthme.org/current-bids-
rfps/pages/current-bids-rfps 
 

Deadline for Submissions: 
All responses to this Request for Qualifications must be received by the Town of Falmouth no later 
than February 25, 2016, 2:00 PM. Proposals should be sent to: Nathan Poore, Town Manager, Town of 
Falmouth, 271 Falmouth Road, Falmouth, Maine 04105. Proposals shall be labeled “RFQ – Street Lights.” 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:npoore@falmouthme.org
http://www.falmouthme.org/current-bids-rfps/pages/current-bids-rfps
http://www.falmouthme.org/current-bids-rfps/pages/current-bids-rfps


8 | P a g e  

 

ATTACHMENT A – Participating Community Profile 

 

 
COMMUNITY PROFILE Approximate Units 

Falmouth, Maine 
 

 Road Miles  
 

 Street Lights attached to public utility poles and scheduled for 
replacement through this project 

 
 Population 

 

 

78 

 

700 

11,185 

Rockland, Maine 
 

 Road Miles  
 

 Street Lights attached to public utility poles and scheduled for 
replacement through this project 

 
 Population 

 

 

57 

 

704 

7,297 

South Portland, Maine 
 

 Road Miles  
 

 Street Lights attached to public utility poles and scheduled for 
replacement through this project 

 
 Population 

 

 

153 

 

1,597 

25,002 

Biddeford, Maine 
 

 Road Miles  
 

 Street Lights attached to public utility poles and scheduled for 
replacement through this project 

 
 Population 

 

 

135 

 

2,325 

21,277 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



9 | P a g e  

 

ATTACHMENT B – Rating Categories 

 

 

The following table will be used to rank proposals in the selection process: 
 
 

RATING CATEGORY WEIGHT 

Company Capability & Experience 
 Respondent demonstrates strong knowledge of streetlight technology, quality standards, 

and design requirements. 

 Respondent has project experience 

o Managing or performing all aspects of the project 
o With large projects (1,000+ lights) in urban and suburban areas for a PM 

 Knowledge of local municipal operations and maintenance requirements 

 Experience with similar partnerships with municipalities and/or municipal 
collaborations 

 Experience or demonstrated understanding of utility requirements and incentives. 

 Experience in assisting municipalities with evaluation and acquisition of their streetlights 

 Experience and capability of providing financing 

 Possession of unique tools and technologies to improve system performance 

 

 

 

 

  from electric utilities, particularly National Grid 

 

 

 

 

30 

Project References 
 For the three project references. Each should: 

o Demonstrate high degree of responsiveness to client needs 
o References speak highly of all aspects of the project and the key delivery personnel 

 
15 

Qualifications & Experience of Project Team 
 Sufficient staff to support project implementation 

 Employees that will staff this project have: 
o Experience performing or managing all aspects of the project (i.e. audit through 

verification) 
o Experience on the projects listed as references 
o Connections with the appropriate utility reps 
o Experience managing a project in this region  

o Appropriate training/certifications 

 

 

 
 

25 

Project Approach 

 Describes a coherent, convincing plan to meet or exceed requirements of scope of work 
for all tasks 

o Includes a detailed schedule that accelerates implementation where possible 
o Includes a description of a rigorous Audit Report that can be used to support 

financing of the remaining project costs 
o Includes a design approach that will meet the PM’s goals of safety, standardization, 

and minimizing lifecycle costs 
o Includes a project management approach which demonstrates efficiencies in time 

and cost 
o Describes the PM’s involvement in all phases and describes an efficient use of  their 

time and resources (e.g. efficient plan for meetings, use of police details or avoiding 
them) 

 

 

 

 
 

30 

 
 
 
 

















dboulanger
Text Box

dboulanger
Text Box

dboulanger
Text Box

dboulanger
Text Box



dboulanger
Text Box

dboulanger
Text Box

dboulanger
Text Box

































 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017 
 
Author:  Dan Goyette 
 

Subject:  Land donation – 25 Dell Court 
 
Information:  Daniel Theberge, owner of 25 Dell Court, has deeded the property to the City.  For the transfer to occur, 
the City would need to accept the deed.  The property is assessed at $3,600.  It does not have any built road frontage 
and the high costs associated with developing the lot have made it virtually worthless.  In benefit to the City, the City 
snow dump melt does pass through this lot and would allow the City to own the land that the melt drains thru.  There is 
a small portion of the lot that is at a higher elevation that a neighbor currently maintains.  The neighbor has expressed 
interest in purchasing that small portion of the lot.  The City may be able to sell this portion to help defray the loss in tax 
revenue.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Loss of tax revenue in the amount of $82.76 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Accept the deed. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments: Deed, Property maps. 
 



n

n
n

n
n
nn

n

n

n
272

270268266264262260258
256

254
252250248246244

25
6

25
4

25
2

25
0

24
8

27
8

27
6

27
4

278

276

250246

278

24
2

274

258

258

25
0 248

De
ll 
Ct

Da
na
 Av

230-035
10 Dana Av

230-059
11 Dana Av

230-036
14 Dana Av

230-042
Dell Ct

230-041
15 Dell Ct

230-030
100

Western Av

230-040
25 Dell Ct

230-031
106

Western Av

230-037
16 Dana Av

230-032
112

Western Av

230-060
5 Dana Av

230-034
118 Western Av

230-033
114

Western Av

230-039
26 Dana Av

230-038
20 Dana Av

240-322
77 Harris St

Updated: 11/2/2017

± 0 50Feet

Path R:\GIS_Projects\Online\AuburnBasemap\Vector_2017.aprx

25 Dell Ct



nn

n

n

n
n

n

n

n

nn
nn n

n

n
n
n

n
nn
n

n
nn

n

n
nn

nn
n

n

n

n

nn

n
n

n
nn
n
nn
n
n

n
nn

n

n
n

nn

n

n

n
n
n

nn
n
nnn
nnn

nn
n

n
nn

n

n
nn

n

n
n
n

n

n

n

n nn
n

n
n

n

n

nn
n
nnn

n
nn

nn

n

n

n

n

n
nn

n

n

n

nn
nn

nn
n

n

nn

n
nn

nn
n

nn
n
n

n

n

n

n

n

n
n
n

n
n

nn

n
n

n

n

n

nn
n

n

n
n

n
nn

nnn n

n

n
n
n

nn
n

n

n

n

n

nn
nn

n
n
n

nn

nn n

n

n
n

n
n
n

n

nn

n

n

nn

nn

n

n
n

nnnnn
nnn

n n
nnn

nn

n

n

n

n
n
n
n
n
n

nnn n

n

n n

n
n
n
n
n
n
n
nn

n
nn

n
n

n

nnnnn

n

n
n

n

nn
n

n

n

n

nnn
n

n

nn

n
n

n

n

n

n
n

nn

n

n

n

n

nn

nn

n

n

n
nn

n nn

n

n
n

n

nn

n

n

n

n

nnn

nn

n

n
n

n

n

n

nnnn

n

nnnnnnn

34
0 33
0

32
0

31
0

30
0 29
0 28
0 27
0

26
0

25
0

24
0

21
0

36
0

35
0

33
0

32
0

31
0

30
0

25
0

34
0 33
0

32
0

31
0

28
0 27

0

33
0

32
0

31
0

30
0

29
0

290

280

29
0

280

270

33
0

31
0

33
0

32
0

300

290

22
0

21
0

20
0

19
0

33
0

32
0

330

320

330320

330

32
0

32
0

31
0 21
0 20
0

20
0 19
0

35
0

23
0

37
0

34
0

29
0

27
0

26
0

30
0

260

340

330

29
0

34
0

34
0

34
0

33
0

33
0

320

29
0

300

28
0

26
0

19
0

19
0

South G
off St

Fairm
ountAv

Hunton Pl

ProspectSt

Harris St

De
ll 
Ct

Elm
 St

W
estern

Av

Ha
ze
l S
t

M
in
ot
Av

W
eaver St

Cushm
an Pl

ForestAv

Cla
rk
St

Su
m

m
it
St

Da
na
 A
v

Me
rri
ll S
t

M
inot Av

Auburn
Hts

Updated: 11/2/2017

± 0 200Feet

Path R:\GIS_Projects\Online\AuburnBasemap\Vector_2017.aprx

25 Dell Ct







 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development (land acquisition – Pan Am), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 
Section 405(6) (C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017     Order: 99-11062017 
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Confirm Chief Crowell’s appointment of John Banville as Constable without firearm for the Auburn 
Police Department. 
 

Information:  Chief of Police Crowell requests that the Auburn City Council appoint civilian city employee John 
Banville to serve documents in the City of Auburn as a Constable without firearm.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Vote to confirm Chief Crowell’s appointment of John Banville as a Constable without 
firearm for the Auburn Police Department.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: n/a 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

 Memo from Chief Crowell 
 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   October 23, 2017  
 

To:   Honorable Mayor Jonathan LaBonte and Members of the City Council 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

RE:  CONSTABLE 2017   

We request the following named person be appointed to serve documents as Constable on behalf of the 

Auburn Police Department for 2017: 

 

John Banville 

 

Civil Process Only 

 

Without Firearm 

 

Appointment 

  
 

     



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 99-11062017 
  

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoint the following named person to serve 

documents as a Constable on behalf of the Auburn Police Department for 2017: 

 

  
 

    John Banville 

 

Civil Process Only 

 

Without Firearm 

 

Appointment 

 
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017   Order:   100-11062017 
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Assets – Dennis Roman 
 

Information:  In June 2017, MDEA agents with the assistance of uniformed Auburn Police officers executed a 

search warrant at a residence on Bearce St. in the City of Auburn.  As a result, a male from New York and a 

female from the Lewiston Auburn area were arrested on multiple charges.  The male subject had $1,940.00 

in U.S. Currency on his person which was seized for forfeiture as suspected proceeds from the illegal sale 

and distribution of drugs.    

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $1,940.00 U.S. 
Currency to the Auburn Police Department. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $1,940.00. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 

Attachments:  

 Memo to City Manager  
 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   October 6, 2017 
 

To:   Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  FORFEITURE ASSETS – DENNIS ROMAN  

In June 2017, MDEA agents with the assistance of uniformed Auburn Police officers executed a search 

warrant at a residence on Bearce St. in the City of Auburn.  As a result, a male from New York and a female 

from the Lewiston Auburn area were arrested on multiple charges.  The male subject had $1,940.00 in U.S. 

Currency on his person which was seized for forfeiture as suspected proceeds from the illegal sale and 

distribution of drugs.    

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 100-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby accepts the transfer of $1,940.00 forfeiture assets in 
Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department (Unified Criminal Court Docket No. CR-
17-1847 Dennis Roman). 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017   Order:   101-11062017 
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Asset – Cain Robertson 
 
Information:  In June 2017, MDEA agents went to a Pine St. residence in the City of Lewiston for the purpose of 
executing an arrest warrant.  Upon executing the arrest warrant, agents established probable cause to apply for a search 
warrant of the residence.  Subsequent to the search of the residence, $3,295.00 in U.S. Currency was seized as 
suspected proceeds from the illegal sale and distribution of drugs.   Of that money $1,087.35 or 33% is to be allotted to 
the Auburn Police Department due to their involvement with having an Auburn officer assigned to MDEA. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $3,295.00 in 
Rem ($1,087.35 in U.S. Currency) to the Auburn Police Department. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $3,295.00 in Rem ($1,087.35 in U.S. Currency). 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 

Attachments:  

 Memo to City Manager  
 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   October 11, 2017 
 

To:   Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  FORFEITURE ASSET – CAIN ROBERTSON  

In June 2017, MDEA agents went to a Pine St. residence in the City of Lewiston for the purpose of 

executing an arrest warrant.  Upon executing the arrest warrant, agents established probable cause to 

apply for a search warrant of the residence.  Subsequent to the search of the residence, $3,295.00 in U.S. 

Currency was seized as suspected proceeds from the illegal sale and distribution of drugs.   Of that money 

$1,087.35 or 33% is to be allotted to the Auburn Police Department due to their involvement with having 

an Auburn officer assigned to MDEA. 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 101-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby acceopts the transfer of $3,295.00 forfeiture assets in 
Rem ($1,087.35 in U.S. Currency) to the Auburn Police Department (Unified Criminal Court 
Docket No. CR-17-1660 Cain Robertson). 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  11-06-2017  Order:  102-11062017     
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
 
Subject: Temporary Sign Request – Auburn Ski Association 
 
Information: The Auburn Ski Association is holding their annual ski swap on Sunday November 12, 2017. They 
are seeking permission to place a temporary sign advertising the event. More details are provided in the 
attached letter. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly event.  

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 

 
Attachments:  
Letter of request 
Order  
 
 
 
 
 





James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 102-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that City Council hereby approves the Auburn Ski Association request for a 
temporary sign for their Annual Ski Swap which will be held on Sunday, November 12th, 2017. 
The sign will be placed at the intersection of Turner Street and Lake Auburn Avenue below 
Starbucks.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 6, 2017   Order: 103-11062017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
 
Subject:  Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the November 6, 2017 Election 
 
Information:   
 
Warden and Ward Clerk Appointments are made every two years. Appointments were made in January of 2016 for the 
2016-2017 term, however there were several positions that were either not filled or vacated. The City Clerk has 
nominated the following Wardens and Ward Clerks to fill those vacant positions for the November 6, 2017 Election. 
 

David Foster – Warden 
Levi Gervais – Warden 
Audrey Murphy - Warden    
 
Lorraine Boilard - Ward Clerk  
Steve Martelli - Ward Clerk  
Paul Ouellette - Ward Clerk  
Alice Dill - Ward Clerk  
 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 

Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

Previous Meetings and History: Two year appointments were made 1/4/2016, however not all positions were filled and 
some are unable to work this election. 

 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments: Order  
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER   103-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following individuals as Wardens and Ward 
Clerks for the November 6, 2017 Election. 

 
David Foster – Warden 
Levi Gervais – Warden 
Audrey Murphy - Warden    
 
Lorraine Boilard - Ward Clerk  
Steve Martelli - Ward Clerk  
Paul Ouellette - Ward Clerk  
Alice Dill - Ward Clerk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  11/06/2017  Ordinance:  11-10162017       
 
Author:  Holli Olivier  
 

Subject:   Adoption of Appendices for General Assistance, Effective 10/01/2017 to 09/30/2018 
 

Information:  I’m seeking the approval of the new General Assistance Appendix A (the GA overall maximums), 
Appendix B (the food maximums), and Appendix C (Lewiston / Auburn MSA Rental Maximums) the housing 
accordance to Ordinance 24-23 in Chapter 24, and Appendix D (the Utilities / Electric Maximums).  Once the 
appendices A - D are adopted, they will replace the FY 16-17 maximums for those appendices.   
 
The maximums are established as a matter of State law based on certain federal and HUD fair market values.  
These appendices are filed with the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with 
Title 22, M.R.S.A. §4305(4).   

 
Advantages:  By adopting the new appendices A - D the program will be in compliance for the 70% 
reimbursement from the State.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The overall maximum (Appendix A) is an average increase of 9.25%.  The food 
maximum (Appendix B) is an average decrease of -1.3%.  The rental increase (Appendix C) is an average 
increase of 11% over last year’s rates.  The utilities maximum (Appendix D) is an average increase of 1.25%. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approval of the increase / decrease to the General Assistance Appendices A - D 
as required by State statutes and ordinance.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly approval needed by council when any changes are done to the 
appendices.  Workshop held on 10/2/2017, public hearing and passage of first reading on 10/16/2017. 

 
Acting City Manager Comments: 
  
I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  ____________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Attachments:  
Appendix A, Overall Maximums 
Appendix B, Food Maximums 
Appendix C, Rental Maximums 
Appendix D, Utilities / Electric Maximums 
Adoption form for 17-18   
 





James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 11-10162017 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, 
Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual Adjustment of Maximum 
Benefits to incorporate the following maximum levels of assistance to be effective on 
and after October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018, as follows: 
 
 
Sec. 24-23. - Annual adjustment of maximum benefits.  
(a)  Each year the Maine Municipal Association provides for the city three appendices 

providing maximum benefits applicable for the period beginning October 1 and ending 
September 30 as mandated by state law and based on certain federal values effective on 
October 1 of each year, as follows:  

(1)  Appendix A, a listing of overall maximum levels of general assistance relating to all 
Maine municipalities.  

(2)  Appendix B, a listing of maximum levels of assistance for food.  

(3)  Appendix C, a listing of maximum levels for heated and unheated housing.  

(4) Appendix D, a listing of maximum levels for households with electrically heated hot 
water. 

 (b)  The portion of these annual appendices applicable to the city, as adopted each year by 
the city council, are made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth herein and a copy 
thereof is available in the office of the city clerk.  

Editor's note— The appendices referred to in this section are not codified but are available in 
the office of the city clerk.  

 

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

       Appendix A – GA Overall Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 
TOTAL NUMBER IN HOUSEHOLD:     1  2     3  4       5 

Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, Lisbon, 
Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic Falls, Minot, 
Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 
641 

 
726 

 
915 

 
1,169 

 
1,397 

*Add $75.00 for each additional person* 
 

       Appendix B – Food Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 
Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 
U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2017, those amounts are: 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
   

1 44.65 192 
2 81.86 352 
3 117.21 504 
4 148.84 640 
5 176.74 760 
6 212.33 913 
7 234.65                     1,009 
8 268.14 

 
                    1,153 
 

**Note:  For each additional person, add $144 per month. 
 
 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

       Appendix C – Rental Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 

Lewiston/Auburn  MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 112 483 135 581 

1 125 538 153 659 

2 165 711 195 838 

3 208 896 251 1,079 

4 249 1,071 301 1,294 

 
Appendix D – Utilities / Electric 

       Effective 10/1/2017 - 9/30/2018 
 
Electricity Maximums for Households With Electrically Heated Hot Water:  The maximum 
amounts allowed for utilities, hot water, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding 
heat: 

 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 

1 $20.65 $89.00 
2 $23.75 $102.00 
3 $27.70 $119.00 
4 $32.25 $139.00 
5 $38.75 $167.00 
6 $41.00 $176.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $10.00 per month. 
 

NOTE: For electrically heated households, the maximum amount allowed for electrical utilities 
per month shall be the sum of the appropriate maximum amount under this subsection and the 
appropriate maximum for heating fuel as provided below. 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  11/06/2017   Ordinance:  12-10162017     
 
Author:  Holli Olivier  
 

Subject:   General Assistance Ordinance changes.  Effective 11/1/2017 
 

Information:  I’m seeking the approval of the new General Assistance Ordinance changes.   
 
These amendments are filed with the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with 
Title 22, M.R.S.A. §4305(4).   

 
By adopting the new changes, the program will be in compliance for the 70% reimbursement from the State.   
If we do not adopt the changes, the program will be penalized and lose the State reimbursement.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The changes should help the City save on the burial fees that are paid by allowing a 
representative of General Assistance to follow up with relative’s financial institutions and by making other 
family members responsible for payment. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approval of the Ordinance changes as required by State statutes and ordinance.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: Ordinance changes may occur every two years unless a law is passed in an 
emergency legislative session.  However, they do not always occur on the every two-year schedule and several 
years have passed since the previous one.  Approval is needed by council when any changes are done to the 
General Assistance Ordinance. Workshop held on 10/2/2017, public hearing and passage of first reading on 
10/16/2017. 

 
Acting City Manager Comments: 
 
I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  ___________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
Administrative Rules and Regulations Language changes. 
 





James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 12-10162017 
 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-21 
(d); and Chapter 24, Article II, Division 4, Sub division II, Sec. 24-161 (8)(h) of the General 
Assistance Ordinance to incorporate the following changes to be effective on and after 
November 1, 2017: 
 
Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-21 (d) Information from other sources 
 
 (d)  Information from other sources. Information furnished to the city by the state 

department of human services or any other agency or institution pursuant to 22 M.R.S.A. § 

4314, concerning recipients of categorical assistance, is confidential. The general assistance 

administrator will also comply with laws relating to the confidentiality of vital statistic records 

such as those concerning birth, marriage and death. (22 M.R.S.A. § 2706). Any representative of 

a financial institution or any employer of a general assistance applicant who, upon receipt of a 

written release signed by the depositor and a written request from the Administrator, refuses 

to provide necessary information to the administrator in order to verify an applicant’s eligibility 

must state in writing the reason for the refusal. Effective November 1, 2017: national banks are 

also obligated to disclose deposit information to the Administrator upon receipt of a written 

request and release signed by the depositor. Additionally, effective November 1, 2017, when a 

municipality or its agents are acting in accordance with section 4313(2) to verify eligibility for 

funeral or cremation benefits, an officer of a financial institution must disclose the amount 

deposited upon receipt of a written request from the municipality or its agents and a notarized 

affidavit signed by the overseer of the municipality or its agents stating that the named 

depositor is deceased. Any such person who refuses to provide information, without just cause, 

may be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $25 nor more than $100.   Any person, 

including the applicant, who knowingly and willfully makes a false representation of a material 

fact to the administrator is committing a Class E crime (22 M.R.S.A. § § 4314, 4315). 

 

 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Chapter 24, Article II, Division 4, Sub division II, Sec. 24-161 (8)(h) Determination of family 
members’ ability to pay 
 
(h)  Determination of family members’ ability to pay 

Any person who refuses to provide necessary information to the administrator in order 
to verify an applicant's eligibility must state in writing the reason for the refusal.  

 
Grandparents, parents, children and grandchildren of the deceased who live in the 
state or own property in state whether or not living in or owning property in Maine, 
and the spouse or registered domestic partner of the deceased, are financially 
responsible for the burial or cremation of the deceased to the extent those relatives, 
individually or as a group, have a financial capacity to pay for the burial or cremation 
either in a lump sum or by means of a budgeted payment arrangement with the 
funeral home. Accordingly, at the request of the administrator, all legally liable 
relatives must provide the city administrator with any reasonably requested 
information regarding their income, assets and basic living expenses. The 
Administrator may also seek information from financial institutions holding assets of 
the deceased. Effective November 1, 2017, Maine law requires a financial institution 
to disclose the amount deposited in the corporation or association when the 
municipality or its agents are acting in accordance with section 4313 (2) and provide a 
written request and a notarized affidavit signed by the overseer of the municipality or 
its agents stating that the named depositor is deceased. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017 Order: 95-10162017 
 
Author:  Douglas Greene, Urban Development Coordinator, Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Discontinuance of Troy Street 
 
Information:  This item on your agenda is a recommendation to the City Council to authorize the Staff to move forward 
with the process of discontinuing Troy Street between Hampshire Street and High Street.  This “block” of Troy Street is a 
non-descript, seldom used Public Street.  (Attachment 1)  The proposed Discontinuance will preserve public access 
between Hampshire Street to Library Street.    
 
The discontinuance process includes specific steps mandated by state law to finalize the request and is described in 
more detail in the attached memo (Attachments 2, 3 and 4).  Staff is requesting that the City Council wait to complete 
the discontinuance until the final legal steps have been completed.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Some minor expenses will be incurred to record the final discontinuance at the Registry of 
Deeds.  There will be a slight reduction in public services time and equipment for the maintenance and snowplowing of 
this section of Troy Street once it is discontinued and becomes the responsibility of the developer. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the city Council approve a motion to have staff move forward on the 
discontinuance and to and to schedule the second reading public hearing and final action at a date to be determined. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The discontinuance for a section of Troy Street was heard at a city Council workshop on 
October 2nd and postponed on October 16th, 2017. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

1. Attachment 1: Photos of Troy Street 
2. Attachment 2: Memo describing the legal steps required to discontinue a street 
3. Attachment 3: Map of the proposed discontinuance 
4. Attachment 4: Sample Order of Discontinuance 

 



Attachment 1 

Troy Street Proposed for Discontinuance 
 

 
View of Troy Street from Hampshire Street 

 

 
View of Troy Street from Library Street 

 

Library Street 

 

Troy Street ROW 

Hampshire Street 

Troy Street ROW 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic and Community Development 

60 Court Street, Auburn,  Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov          207.333.6601 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

To: Mayor Jonathan L. LaBonte and the Auburn City Council 

 

From: Douglas Greene, Urban Development Coordinator 

 

Date: November 6, 2017 

 

RE: Discontinuance of a section of Troy Street 

 

Overview:  The Department of Economic and Community Development is facilitating the 

development of a city owned property (Parcel # 240-212) that is located in the Troy Street area with 

the Szanton Company.  One of the ways to maximize the “Troy Street” development is to 

discontinue the section of the Troy Street right of way between Hampshire Street and Library Street. 

(Attached Map) and incorporate a portion of the discontinued street into the development.  In order 

to do that, this section of Troy Street needs to go through a discontinuance process.  

 

State Law for the Discontinuance of a Municipal road in Maine requires a six step process: 

1. Estimate potential damages to adjacent property owners.  The two properties adjacent to the 

proposed discontinuance are 29 Library Street (Parcel # 240-202) and a Pan Am Railroad 

right of way (Parcel # 240-203).  Should the City Council agree to move forward, the Staff 

would have an appraisal of these two properties to determine possible damages, if any, due 

the loss of street frontage.  

2. Notice will be sent to all abutting property owners prior to a public hearing and 2
nd

 reading of 

the Order to Discontinue.  Notice is also required to be given to the Planning Board, which 

can happen at their November 14
th

 meeting.  

3. The City Council should discuss the proposed discontinuance as a first reading and public 

hearing at the future City Council meeting.  At that meeting, the City Council would move 

forward with the discontinuance, and pass a motion to order the discontinuance using 

language from the sample Order of Discontinuance of a Section of Troy Street.  If that 

motion passes, a second motion should be made stating “I move that the City Council issue 

and file with the City Clerk an Order of Discontinuance that accurately reflects the action 

taken by the City Council to discontinue a section of Troy Street, and that the City Council 

send abutting property owners best practicable notice of this action without delay.” 

4. The Order of Discontinuance order, signed by the Municipal Officer, is filed by the City 

Clerk and the notice of discontinuance is sent to abutting property owners along with a copy 

of the order of discontinuance. 

5. The City Council then at a later meeting approves the order of discontinuance and damage 

awards (if any). 

6. The final step, if the discontinuance is approved, is for the municipal clerk to record an 

attested certificate of road discontinuance in the Registry of Deeds certificate that should 

include a description of the road and state the municipality’s final action.   

 

After final Council action, there is a 30 day appeal regarding the discontinuance and a 60 day 

appeal for damages. 

dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



dgreene
Polygon

dgreene
Callout
Proposed Section of Troy Street to be discontinued

dgreene
Text Box
Parcel # 240-202

dgreene
Text Box
Parcel # 240-203

dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of City Manager  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

Auburn, Maine 04210  

207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

Order of Discontinuance of a Road 

 

 

TO:  Residents of the City of Auburn and other Interested Persons 

 
FROM:  Auburn City Council 

 

 The Municipal Officers of the City of Auburn hereby orders the discontinuance of a 

section of Troy Street as a City Way while preserving its use as a public easement, for a 

distance of approximately 249 feet beginning at the intersection of Hampshire Street and Troy 

Street.  Troy Street is approximately 30 feet wide and begins at the southern side of the 

intersection of Hampshire Street and Troy Street, whence it runs approximately 249 feet in a 

generally southerly direction to the northerly intersection of Library Street and Troy Street, as 

shown more particularly on the attached map, (from City Tax Map 240), on file at Economic and 

Community Development Office. . 

  

 Having given best practicable notice to all abutting property owners, we further 

order damages to the abutting property owners as follows: 

 

Name: _______________________  Amount: _____________ 

Name: _______________________  Amount: _____________ 
 

 

 

Date:    
 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Peter Crichton, City Manager 

 

 

 
********** 

(Note: A copy of this Order must be filed with the City Clerk; also, send a 

copy to all abutters, along with the Notice of Discontinuance.) 

 

dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 95-10162017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the Economic and Community Development 
Staff to proceed with the legal steps necessary to discontinue the Troy Street Right of Way 
between Hampshire Street and Library Street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  10/16/2017  Order: 96-10162017 
 

Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  HOME Fund Commitment  
 
Information:   

The City agreed to partially fund the Troy Street project with $110,000 in HOME funds; the allocations of these 
funds need to be voted on.  
 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Minimal, Federal funds are already approved for moderate or low income housing 
assistance and the tax shift/general fund loss would be minimal.  Any co-op housing project funding would be 
pushed into fiscal year 2019.   

 
Staff Recommended Action:  The staff recommends passage.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  

Council Executive Session, June 19th, 2017 

Council Executive Session, August 7th, 2017 

Council Meeting, August 31th, 2017 
Council Workshop, October 2nd, 2017 
Council agenda, October 16th, 2017 – postponed to 11/6/2017 

 
Acting City Manager Comments:  
  
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
 

Order 96-10162017 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 96-10162017 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorize $110,000.00 in home funds be reserved for 
the Troy Street workforce housing project.  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

City Council Meeting Date: November 6, 2017    Order: 97-10162017 
   
 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Income Utilization Memorandum of Understanding  
 

Information:   

 
The Auburn Business Development Corporation was founded in 1972 as a not-for-profit organization to assist 

with business recruitment and business expansion in the City of Auburn. Enclosed is a timeline of ABDC 

activities dating back to the late 1990’s. It was in the mid 1990’s that ABDC working in collaboration with 

the City of Auburn built a speculative building in the Kittyhawk Business Park, which was later purchased 

and now houses Mizkan Americas.  

 

ABDC and the City partnered together to develop plans for the Auburn Industrial Park. Then what followed 

was the successful sale by ABDC of Logistics Drive to a private developer and later on the creation of the 

Auburn Enterprise Center. It is the Auburn Enterprise Center that is the focus of the Memorandum of 

Understanding which is now before the Council. 

 

The purpose of the MOU as stated in its opening paragraph is “to clarify and confirm the uses of Program 

Income resulting from sales of commercial/industrial lots at the Auburn Enterprise Center.” As background, 

there have been many discussions that have taken place by the City in executive session and by the ABDC 

Board in order to work out an agreement on this MOU. What is before you is a reflection of the direction 

given to staff. It also is in agreement with the ABDC Board. In summary, the MOU addresses the following:  

 

 By joint agreement between the City and ABDC submitted to the Federal Government’s Economic 

Development Administration, Program income will be spent in compliance with the agreed upon 

Income Reutilization Plan;  

 The City agrees to advance the costs of extending high speed fiber infrastructure in order to connect 

       existing fiber, which will then be reimbursed to the City from the Program income resulting from the    

       sale of commercial/industrial lots at AEC; 

 A pool of funds of $35,000 will be established to be held by the City of Auburn and used to pay for 

wetland mitigation costs. Any balance in this fund will be refunded to the ABDC; 

 To improve cooperation and coordination representatives of ABDC and the City will meet 

periodically; 

 In the interest of continued dialogue and the peaceful resolution of any disputes which may arise 

between ABDC and the City, the City and ABDC agree to resolve any such disputes through informal 

negotiation between the City Manager and President of ABDC. If the dispute remains unresolved, the 

parties agree to settle the dispute by mediation and if they cannot agree it shall be resolved through 

binding arbitration.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 
 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Authorize the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 

Auburn and the Auburn Business Development Corporation, dated October 16
th
, 2017. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Numerous Executive Sessions. Action was postponed until 11/6/2017 at the 10/16/2017 

Council Meeting. 
 

City Manager Comments:  
  
I strongly recommend the Council approve the MOU. Signature: _______________________________________ 
 

 

Attachment(s): 
Memorandum of Understanding dated October 16

th
, 2017.  

 































James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 97-10162017 
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorize the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Auburn and the Auburn Business Development Corporation. 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017  
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot, Community Development Manager 
 

Subject:  Public Hearing - Substantial Amendment to HOME Program Budget 
 
Information:  The Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) requires that any Substantial Amendment to the 5 Year Consolidated 
Plan or Annual Action Plan be authorized by the City Council.  A substantial amendment is defined as any change to the 
budget that exceeds 10% of the Annual allocation plus program income ($46,842). The CPP also requires a 30-day public 
notice followed by a public hearing before the City Council.  The notice was published on October 4, 2017.   
 
The HOME Budget for FFY2017 was adopted by the City Council On May 15, 2017 and included a line item for a CO-OP 
Housing Project and is funded with $111,828.  On August 7, 2017 The City Council authorized the transfer of funds from 
the CO-OP Budget to the Rental Development Project at 477 Minot Avenue in the amount of $110,000. 
 
Staff will create a line item in the HOME Budget “Support Creation of New Affordable Housing” and move the funds of 
$111,828.  This supports the goal of the 5-Year Consolidated Plan.  This line item will allow for funding of all affordable 
housing projects.   
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: No action required from City Council 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:   City Council Meeting of August 7, 2017 Council Order #69-08072017 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:   Substantial Amendment – FFY2017 Action Plan  
 





 

Substantial Amendment  

FFY2017 Action Plan – City of Auburn 

 

The 2017 Action Plan was adopted by the City Council on May 15, 2017. A budgeted line item in the 

Action Plan was identified as a Co-Op Housing Project.  Staff met with a developer on two occasions but 

was unsuccessful in engaging him to create a Co-Op Project in Auburn.  Later in June, a developer 

approached the City to request HOME funds for a 35 unit workforce housing project.  In August, a 

second developer approached the city and requested HOME Funds for the construction of new 

affordable housing units.  Both projects are welcomed by the city.  The developers have request TIF 

funding in addition to HOME funds and will apply for Low Income Tax Credits this fall.  The City Council is 

in favor of both projects.   This amendment will make available $111,828 of HOME funds.  The requested 

amendment is as follows: 

1)  Delete the HOME Activity for Co-Op Housing and move the funds of $111,828 earmarked for the 

development of a Co-Operative housing to the HOME project entitled Support Construction of New 

Affordable Housing.  This project is listed as one of eight high priority goals of the 2015-2019 

Consolidated Plan.  Activities that will be eligible under this project include working with developers of 

high quality, affordable, mixed-income housing in Auburn.  The City of Auburn is experiencing very low 

rental vacancy rates, the existing housing stock is old and many of the buildings are pre-1978 and so are 

presumed to contain lead paint which if not maintained can lead to poisoning in children.  The 

development of new housing units is needed and has been identified as a high priority.  The funds can 

be used to support projects that will result in the creation of new housing units. 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 6, 2017    Orders:104-11062017, 105-11062017, 106-11062017  
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Board and Committee Appointments 
 
The Appointment Committee met on October 16, 2017 to review applications and make their nominations for boards 
and committees of the City as follows: 
 
Amy Dietrich - Board of Assessment (full member), term expiration 10/01/2022 (new appointment). 
Shelley Norton - Conservation Commission, term expiration 6/1/2020 (new appointment). 
Christopher Gendron – Zoning Board of Appeals (full member), term expiration 10/1/2020 (re-appointment).  
Bruce Richardson – Zoning Board of Appeals (full member), term expiration 10/1/2020 (re-appointment). Belinda 
Courtney McDonough – Zoning Board of Appeals (full member), term expiration 10/1/2020 (re-appointment). 
 
Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 406(6) (A) to review applications or for further 
discussion before making appointments. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider appointing members as nominated, to fill the vacancies. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Appointment Committee met on October 16, 2017 to make their nominations. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attachments:  
List of nominees 
List of vacancies 
Applications 
 
 



Board of Assessment Review (5 vacancies - 2 full member positions. One with a term 

expiration of 10/01/2020, and one with a term expiration of 10/01/2022. Three alternate 

positions. One with a term expiration of 10/1/2020,  and two with term expirations of 10/1/2022) 

Cable TV Advisory Committee (1 vacancy with a term expiration of 6/1/2019)  

Citizens Advisory Committee (7-10 vacancies, all with 6/30/2019 term expirations) 

Conservation Commission (1 vacancy with 6/1/2020 term expiration) 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (1 vacancy - with a term expiration of 10/01/2018) 

St. Louis Bells Project Committee - Seeking 9 volunteers 

Zoning Board of Appeals - 4 vacancies - 3 fulll member positions and 1 associate member 

position all with 10/01/2020 term expirations). 

 

http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Board%20of%20Assessment2%20%20%20%205-18-2015.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/A-L%20Cable%20TV%20Interlocal%20Agreement%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20AGREEMENT%2010%209%2015.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Citizen%20Participation%20Plan%202015%20%20final%204-7-2014.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/xDIVISION_5.___CONSERVATION_COMMISSION.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/DIVISION_4._PARKS_AND_RECREATION_ADVISORY_BOARD.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/St%20Louis%20Bells%20Project%20Committee.pdf
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Zoning%20Board%20of%20Appeals%20Purpose.pdf


Board Committee Applications
October 16, 2017

Board or Committee Ward Last Name First Name Address

Board of Assessment Review 2 Dieterich Amy 45 Gamage Ave. #2

Conservation Commission 1 Norton Shelley 275 B Summer Street

Zoning Board of Appeals 4 Gendron Christopher 1 Miami Ave.
3 McDonough Courtney 370 Stevens Mill Rd.
5 Richardson Bruce 143 Mill Street #324











James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 104-1106017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Board of Assessment 10/01/2022 
 

Amy Dieterich 
      (full member, new appointment) 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 105-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Conservation Commission 06/01/2020 Shelley Norton 
      ( new appointment) 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 106-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee members 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Zoning Board of Appeals 10/01/2020 
10/01/2020 
10/01/2020 

Christopher Gendron (full member, re-appointment) 
Bruce Richardson (full member, re-appointment) 
Courtney McDonough (full member, re-appointment) 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 6, 2017   Order: 107-11062017 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

Subject:  Liquor License request for Hing Long Inc, DBA Tin Tin Buffet 
 
Information:  Hing Long Inc, DBA Tin Tin Buffet, an existing business with new ownership, located at 120 Center Street 
Suite 202, applied for a Liquor License. Police, Fire, and Code have completed the necessary inspections and have 
granted approval. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Public hearing and recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

 Application 

 Public Notice 

 Order  
 















CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held by the Auburn City Council on Monday, 

November 6, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in the 

Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider the Liquor 

License application for: 

 

Hing Long Inc, DBA Tin Tin Buffet 

120 Center Street Suite 202, Auburn, Maine 

 

All interested persons may appear and will be given the opportunity to be 

heard before final action is taken. 

 

  

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 107-11062017 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Liquor License for Hing Long Inc, DBA 

Tin Tin Buffet located at 120 Center Street Suite 202, Auburn, Maine. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017  Order:  108-11062017 
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  History Trail Proposal 
 
Information:  As we discussed at the September 11 workshop, staff has completed the installation of the highest priority 
wayfinding signs and kiosks downtown.  Androscoggin Land Trust has completed a Travel Stories Local Audio Story for 
walking and kayaking downtown.   As a next step, staff has been participating in a few meetings over the last year with a 
working group interested in promoting awareness of history in Auburn and Lewiston and using that history to create a 
high quality walking tour downtown.  Participants in the discussion include Grow L+A, ALT, Healthy Androscoggin, Cities 
of Lewiston and Auburn, Androscoggin Historical Society, Jane Costlow and Kristen Barnett (Bates Professors), Sam Boss 
(Bates Harward Center), and Museum LA.  The group has come up with a proposal to create a memorable walking tour 
in the two cities and is asking if the cities are willing to fund the project.  Auburn has $25,000 in approved funding for a 
wayfinding sign project and this proposal could be a good component to continue that effort.   
 
Next steps include developing an RFP for a competitive bid process and determining content and designs that 
complement existing signs, installation and maintenance cost estimates, choosing the best proposal and then ordering 
signs.  We are asking the Council if they wish to fund this project with the existing funds appropriated for wayfinding 
signs.  We would also like to allow the existing group of community member s that has been working on this project to 
solicit content ideas from the public and select and create the content for the signs. Attachments from the workshop are 
included as examples but the proposed RFP Process would determine a vendor.    
 
The Council discussed how this project might take away from the existing wayfinding sign project at the September 
meeting.  The Council may also be aware we had some storm damage to existing wayfinding kiosk signs.  We will be 
working with the contractor to have them replaced/repaired and installed to the designed specifications separate from 
the proposed history trail project.   We intend to propose additional signs to continue work on wayfinding in next year’s 
CIP but need to work through the existing problems and plan to rebid additional signs with a competitive process if CIP 
funding is approved.  We are hoping full that the interest in wayfinding signs does not prevent the History Trail project 
from moving forward.    

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Up to $25,000 to purchase and install the signs.  The funding is already appropriated for 
wayfinding signs including informational kiosks.   

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Funding for wayfinding signs including informational kiosks is approved.  Staff requests 
that the Council vote to move forward with the project as a component of the wayfinding sign initiative.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: September 11, 2017 workshop.   

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
 









Recent Updates and potential topics 

I wanted to keep you updated regarding the History Trail project and realized you did not receive 
the most recent email to the working group. Below is an email summarizing the Museum in the 
Streets program that the working group is looking into. 
  
Here are some other recent updates: 
-working group members include: Grow L+A, ALT, Healthy Androscoggin, Cities of Lewiston 
and Auburn, Androscoggin Historical Society, Jane Costlow and Kristen Barnett (Bates 
Professors), Sam Boss (Bates Harward Center), and Museum LA. 
-The Cities of Lewiston and Auburn will have a few kiosks installed by June 1. Some will 
include directions for using the Travelstorys app. These kiosks will not interfere with the History 
Trail plans but instead will be a nice compliment. 
-The working group is investigating enlisting the help of “Museum in the Streets” 
http://www.themuseuminthestreets.com/They offer panel design and creation for 20 small panels 
and 2 large panels for $16,200 (posts and installation not included). We are finalizing a budget to 
present for potential funding. 
-City of Lewiston is interested in expanding the tour to include some sites on Lisbon Street 
Other new content ideas for the tour include: Expand re: Indigenous people as well as a timeline 
of immigration (then and now), Expand re: the canals in Lewiston, Veterans Park, Incorporate 
health and outdoor recreation/exercise, incorporate the Knight House, include Marston Hartley, 
include the Edward Little House, have an interactive kid portion on the signs (treasure hunt), 
natural history and info re: feeding the ducks, Laurel Street ice house, Saw Mill at falls and log 
drives 
  
Please let us know if you have any questions and thank you for your interest in this project! 
  
Shelley 
 

http://www.themuseuminthestreets.com/


TAP 
INTO YOUR
SURROUNDINGS 

THE APP THAT TURNS YOUR CELL 
PHONE INTO A TOUR GUIDE



AUTHENTIC LOCAL AUDIO STORIES 

FREE TO DOWNLOAD

WALKING & PADDLING

NO WIFI NECESSARY 

WWW.TRAVELSTORYS.COM
U.S. Patent No. 8,965,410 & U.S. Pat. No. 9,078,096

DOWNLOAD NOW AND PLAY IT BY EAR

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

Order 108-11062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorize staff to request proposals for the History Trail 
Signage project, use the existing group of community members to solicit content ideas from 
the public and determine content, select a vendor to build and install the signs and to utilize 
up to $25,000 of existing wayfinding funds for the project.    

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017  Ordinance: 13-11062017 
 

Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject: Text Amendment of Chapter 60 livestock related definitions.   
 

Information:  The City Council requested staff and the Planning Board to amend the Zoning Ordinance to 
eliminate conflict regarding livestock definitions and minimum lot size for the keeping of livestock that 
currently exists between Chapter 8 and Chapter 60. The draft text amendment addresses: 1) how livestock is 
defined, and 2) the acreage required for the keeping of livestock. The change makes the two ordinances 
consistent but still requires the 1 acre minimum that already exists in Chapter8.   

 

City Budgetary Impacts: None.  Makes conflicting ordinance standards consistent.   
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council hold the required public hearing and approve 
1st reading. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: The issue of livestock has been discussed at numerous City Council meetings 
since March 2017. The City Council asked the Planning Board to initiate a zoning text amendment to correct 
the contradictions around livestock. The Planning Board discussed draft text amendments at their August and 
September meetings and voted to approve the draft text amendment and forward it to the City Council for a 
final vote. All Planning Board materials from the two meetings are included as attachments.    The Council 
discussed this language at the October 16 meeting.   
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

1. Planning Board Report for Livestock at the September 12, 2017 meeting. 
2. Planning Board Memo for Discussion at the August 8, 2017 meeting.  
3. Livestock Ordinance-First Reading 
4. Public Notice 

 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 
Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT to the CITY COUNCIL  
 
To: Mayor LaBonte and Honorable Members of the Auburn City Council 
 
From: Auburn Planning Board 
  
Re: Text Amendment for Livestock 
 
Date: October 2 2017 
 
 

A. SUMMARY - On September 12, 2017 the Auburn Planning Board held a public hearing and 
made a recommendation on a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to address contradictory 
definitions of Livestock and Animals pursuant to Chapter 8 Animals, Article I, Sec 8-1 and 
Chapter 60 Zoning, Article I, Sec. 60-2. The meeting consisted of a staff presentation and 
discussion by the Planning Board. After the discussion, the Planning Board voted 
unanimously in favor (motion by Cyr, seconded by Scoggins) to send a recommendation of 
APPROVAL for the Text Amendment on to the City Council for final action. 
 
PROPOSAL - Two major discrepancies arise between Chapter 8 & 60 Definitions that the 
Planning Board would like to address: 1) how livestock is defined, and 2) the acreage 
required for the keeping of livestock. The definition of livestock from Chapter 60 Sec. 60-2 
reads: “Livestock means domestic animals kept, used or raised on a farm for the production of 
income.” This definition leaves the door open, if livestock are not being raised for the 
production of income, to be interpreted as pets. The definition of livestock from Chapter 8 
Animals reads: “Livestock means, but may not be limited to, any horses, mules, donkeys, 
cattle, goats, sheep, or swine.” The Chapter 8 definition simply indicates what livestock are, 
irrespective of purpose.  
 
The simplest and most effective change would update the definition of livestock in Chapter 
60 to read identical to the definition in Chapter 8. In addition to integrating the definition of 
livestock from Chapter 8 into Chapter 60, staff recommends updating the definition title of 
“Farm, Animal” to read as “Farm, Livestock” in Chapter 60 Definitions since the definition 
refers only to what the definition of livestock in Chapter 8 refers to as livestock. Staff also 
recommended the new definition of “Farm, Livestock” in Chapter 60 include the one acre 
minimum specified by Chapter 8, Sec. 8-264 (2) Keeping of Livestock generally.  
 
PLANNING BOARD DELIBERATION AND RECOMMENDATION -  The Staff presented a report 
and draft text amendment at the Planning Board’s August meeting & a public hearing for 
the September meeting. The Planning Board discussed the proposed changes suggested by 
staff. In addition, to accepting the changes put forth by staff, the Planning Board also 

Page 1 of 3 
 



offered some further wordsmithing to facilitate more unification in Chapter 60 definitions of 
livestock.  
 
Planning Board member Philbrick made a motion, seconded by Scoggins to forward a 
recommendation of Approval to the City Council to amend the Auburn Code of Ordinances 
by updating the definitions of “Livestock” and “Farm, Animal” in Chapter 60 Zoning, Sec. 
60-2 Definitions which was supported unanimously as per attachment.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 
Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 
 
The definition for Livestock and Farm, Animal definitions in Chapter 60, Sec.60-2 
Definitions would now read:  
 
Livestock means, domestic animals kept, used or raised on a farm for the production of 
income. but may not be limited to, any horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, sheep, or 
swine. 
 
Farm, animal livestock, means any parcel of land that contains at least the following land 
area used for the keeping of horses, mules, donkeys, cattle cows, goats, sheep, swine hogs 
and similar sized animals for the agricultural domestic use of the residents of the lot, 
provided that there is a minimum of 1 acre of land as required by Chapter 8 Animals and 
provided that adequate land area is provided for each animal unit, excluding water bodies of 
one-quarter acre surface area or larger:  
(1)  
Cattle: One bovine animal unit per acre of cleared hay-pasture land.  
(2)  
Horse: 1.5 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  
(3)  
Sheep: Three animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  
(4)  
Swine: Two animal units per acre of cleared land.  
(5)  
Other livestock animal farms: The required lot size shall be determined by municipal officer 
charged with enforcement and shall conform to the lot size for similar sized animals.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Dan Philbrick, Chair Auburn Planning Board 
 File 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Auburn Planning Board 
 
From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 
 
Re: Discussion of Planning Board Initiated Text Amendment for Livestock. 
 
Date: August 8, 2017 
 
 
As you may know, late last year, staff was approached by a citizen requesting to keep goats 
as pets in the Low Density Rural Residential District. According to Chapter 60 Zoning 
definitions, goats could be allowed on the .39 acre lot owned by the citizen, barring any 
complaints from neighbors or the creation of a nusiance. The definitions in Chapter 60 
Zoning relevant to the discussion are as follows:  
 
Livestock – Domestic animals kept, used or raised on a farm for the production of income. 
 
Farm, Animal – Any parcel of land used for the keeping of horses, mules, cows, goats, sheep, 
hogs and similar sized animals for the domestic use of the residents of the lot, provided that 
adequate land area for each animal unit contains at least the following, excluding water bodies 
of one-quarter (1/4) acre surface area or larger: 
 
1. Cattle – 1 bovine animal unit per acre of cleared hay-pasture land. 
2. Horse – 1.5 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land. 
3. Sheep – 3 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land. 
4. Swine – 2 animal units per acre of cleared land. 
5. Other animal farms – The required lot size shall be determined by municipal officer 
charged with enforcement and shall conform to the lot size for similar sized animals. 
 
Household Pet – Any animal kept as a pet and normally housed at night within the owner’s 
dwelling or an accessory building on the same lot; but not including any animal normally raised 
as livestock or poultry, nor any animal raised for commercial gain.  No household pet shall be 
kept that creates a public nuisance by reason of (1) objectionable effects perceptible outside 
the owner’s property, such as excessive or untimely noise or offensive odors; or (2) being a 
hazard to the health, safety and welfare of neighbors, invited guests or public servants visiting 
the property in the pursuit of their normal duties. 
 



Staff interpreted the definitions from Chapter 60 Zoning to mean that goats, since they 
were not being raised for the production of income or commercial gain, were not considered 
livestock and instead were considered household pets.  
 
Earlier this year the citizen was visited by Auburn Police who had received a complaint  
about the goats and was informed that goats were not allowed to be kept on lots less than 1 
acre, according to Chapter 8 Animals of the Auburn Code of Ordinances. Chapter 8 Animals 
defines goats as livestock, irrespective of purpose, and also sets a 1 acre minimum lot size 
for the keeping of livestock.  The definitions in Chapter 8 Animals relevant are as follows:  
 
Livestock means, but may not be limited to, any horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, sheep or 
swine. 
 
Sec. 8-264. - Keeping of livestock generally. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or permit the keeping of livestock on premises 
owned by him or under his control, except in compliance with the following regulations:  
 
(1) Livestock shall only be kept on lots or tracts of land zoned or designated for rural or 
agricultural purposes by the city.  
(2) Livestock shall not be kept on lots and tracts of land less than one acre in area.  
(3) The provisions of article III of this chapter, pertaining to animal care and control, relative to 
animal care in general, shall specifically apply to the keeping of livestock.  
 
Chapter 8 Animals defines goats as livestock and says livestock shall not be permitted on 
lots less than an acre. Staff is looking for feedback concerning the conflict between Chapters 
8 and 60 in the Auburn Code of Ordinances concerning livestock. The simplest and most 
effective change would remove the “production of income” from the definition of livestock 
in Chapter 60 and define the animals considered livestock as Chapter 8 does. This change 
would maintain the existing 1 acre minimum for goats or other livestock; The Council has 
indicated that the 1 acre standard makes sense.   
 
The definition and standards for animal density could also be amended to read as follows: 
 
Farm, Animal – Any parcel of land used for the keeping of horses, mules, cows, goats, sheep, 
hogs and similar sized animals for the domestic use of the residents of the lot, provided that 
there is a minimum of 1 acre of land as required by Chapter 8, Animals and adequate land area 
for each animal unit contains at least the following, excluding water bodies of one-quarter (1/4) 
acre surface area or larger: 
 
1. Cattle – 1 bovine animal unit per acre of cleared hay-pasture land. 
2. Horse – 1.5 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land. 
3. Sheep – 3 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land. 
4. Swine – 2 animal units per acre of cleared land. 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
5. Other animal farms – The required lot size shall be determined by municipal officer 
charged with enforcement and shall conform to the lot size for similar sized animals. 
 
If the Planning Board would like to explore other changes or address other concerns 
between the definitions of Chapter 8 and Chapter 60, staff is open to hearing them and 
preparing a document that summarizes those changes/concerns at the next meeting.  



CITY OF AUBURN 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Auburn will hold a public hearing on 

Monday, November 6, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter at the City Council 

Chambers in the Auburn Hall Building at 60 Court Street, Auburn Maine, for purposes of 

receiving public comments on the following: 

 

1
st
 Reading of a Text Amendment concerning contradictory definitions of Livestock, 

Animals, and Pets pursuant to Chapter 8, Article I Sec 8-1 and Chapter 60, Article I Sec. 60-
2. The proposal is to amend Chapter 60, Article I Sec. 60-2.   
 

A copy of the proposed ordinance will be on file with the City Clerk and may be reviewed at the 

offices of the City Clerk during normal business hours. All interested persons are invited to 

attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity to be heard at that time. 

 

 

 

 

To be placed in the Lewiston Sun Journal on Thursday, October 26, 2017 and Monday 

October 30, 2017.   

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
ORDINANCE 13-11062017 

 
Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby approve first reading of and amendment to 
Chapter 60, Sec.60-2 Definitions to read as follows:   
 
Livestock means, domestic animals kept, used or raised on a farm for the production of 
income. but may not be limited to, any horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, sheep, or 
swine. 
 
Farm, animal livestock, means any parcel of land that contains at least the following land 
area used for the keeping of horses, mules, donkeys, cattle cows, goats, sheep, swine hogs 
and similar sized animals for the agricultural domestic use of the residents of the lot, 
provided that there is a minimum of 1 acre of land as required by Chapter 8 Animals and 
provided that adequate land area is provided for each animal unit, excluding water bodies of 
one-quarter acre surface area or larger:  
(1)  
Cattle: One bovine animal unit per acre of cleared hay-pasture land.  
(2)  
Horse: 1.5 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  
(3)  
Sheep: Three animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  
(4)  
Swine: Two animal units per acre of cleared land.  
(5)  
Other livestock animal farms: The required lot size shall be determined by municipal officer 
charged with enforcement and shall conform to the lot size for similar sized animals.  
 

Page 1 of 1 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    November 6, 2017 Resolve: 04-11062017 
 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

Subject:  Opiate Litigation  
 

Information:  

  

Attorney James Belleau, of Trafton, Matzen Belleau & Frenette, LLP (TMBF, LLP) has been working with a 
national firm Napoli Shkolnik PLLC (NS PLLC) representing cities, states and counties in claims against the 
manufacturers and distributors of opiates.  This national firm first looked into pursuing claims with hopes 
of representing individuals and families directly impacted by this issue.  During that process, they 
discovered several compelling reasons why a more comprehensive approach to litigation would be 
advantageous for all.  Therefore, NS PLLC realized that the best approach was to represent governmental 
agencies across the country in pursuing claims against drug companies, and is now doing so.  Trafton, 
Matzen Belleau & Frenette, LLP have now joined them and are “taking a ground up approach whereby the 
named parties are actual cities, counties and municipalities so if there is a recovery or settlement the 
cities, counties and towns get their proportionate share of the recovery if there is one”.     
 

The City of Lewiston and City of Portland have adopted resolutions, and the City of Auburn is invited to join 
in to “engage the services of Napoli Shkolnik, PLLC and Trafton, Matzen, Belleau & Frenette, LLP on behalf 
of the City of Auburn with respect to prosecution of any legal claims against manufacturers and 
distributors of opioids arising out of the manufacturers’ and distributors’ fraudulent and negligent 
marketing and distribution of opioids.” – as stated in the draft, proposed resolution.   

 
 

City Budgetary Impacts: No budgetary impacts 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend that the Auburn City Council engage the firms of Napoli Shkolnik, PLLC and 
Trafton, Matzen, Belleau & Frenette, LLP  TMBF, LLP as noted in the draft resolution.   
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Discussed litigation issue in Executive Session on October 16, 2017 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  Resolution Authorizing the City of Auburn to Join a Lawsuit; NSMK – Opioids-Digital; Opioids Info Book 
 



 
 

 

 

NAPOLILAW.COM  

360 Lexington Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (212)397-1000 

 

 
NAPOLI SHKOLNIK PLLC NATIONWIDE OPIOID LITIGATION 

 
The law firm of Napoli Shkolnik PLLC is uniquely positioned to take on the 

complex task of pursuing opioid litigation on behalf of government entities.  We have been 
retained by municipalities nationwide to file actions against the manufacturers and 
distributors of opioid pain medications on their behalf. Napoli Shkolnik has a long and 
distinguished history of representing counties, cities, and other municipal offices across the 
country.  State and federal courts have appointed Napoli Shkolnik to leadership positions in 
many of the largest pharmaceutical litigations ever filed and the firm has been involved in 
nearly every major pharmaceutical mass tort case over the last two decades.   
 

Our firm has filed actions on behalf of numerous cities and counties across the 
country, including Dayton, Ohio, Nassau County, New York, and Manchester, New 
Hampshire. We have also been retained by or are investigating claims for countless other 
municipalities across the United States, including municipalities in West Virginia, Maine, 
New Jersey, New Hampshire, New Jersey, Ohio, New York, Georgia, New Mexico, and 
other states across the country.  To date, Napoli Shkolnik represents over forty 
municipalities nationwide.  

 
Below are a few points regarding the damage caused by opioids:   

• Opioids claimed 175,000 American lives from 1999-2013 and this number 
has only continued to grow;  

• From 1999 to 2010, a 4-fold increase in opioid sales paralleled a more than 
4-fold increase in prescription opioid overdose deaths; 

• In the United States, prescription opioid abuse costs are about $55.7 billion 
annually (CDC, Prescription Drug Overdose data); 

• Drug overdose is the leading cause of accidental death in the United States;  
• 91 Americans die every day from opioids overdose;  

 
THEORY OF LIABILITY 

 
The claims against the manufacturers of opioid pain medications include claims of 

deceptive business practices, false advertising, public nuisance, violations of social 
services/Medicaid law, fraud, and unjust enrichment.  The claims involve the deceptive 
practices of the manufacturer defendants in using both branded and unbranded marketing to 
reach prescribers and patients.   Unbranded marketing through the use of front groups such 
as the American Pain Foundation, attempted to evade FDA regulations and consumer 
practices law.  The overarching theme of the manufacturing defendants’ deception is that 
opioid pain medications were not addictive and were safe for long term use.  Defendants 
knew that opioids were effective treatments for short-term post-surgical and trauma-related  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

NAPOLILAW.COM  

360 Lexington Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (212)397-1000 

 

 
pain, and for palliative (end-of-life) care. Yet they also knew–and had known for years–that 
opioids were addictive and subject to abuse, particularly when used long-term for chronic 
non-cancer pain (pain lasting three months or longer), and should there not be used except 
as a last-resort.  
 

Defendants spent hundreds of millions of dollars: (a) developing and disseminating 
seemingly truthful scientific and educational materials and advertising that misrepresented 
the risks, benefits, and superiority of opioids long-term use to treat chronic pain (b) 
deploying sales representatives who visited doctors and other prescribers and delivered 
misleading messages about the use of opioids (c) recruiting prescribing physicians as paid 
speakers as a means to secure those physicians’ future “brand loyalty” and extend their 
reach to all physicians; (d) funding, assisting, encouraging, and directing certain doctors, 
known as “key opinion leaders”, not only to deliver scripted talks, but also to draft 
misleading studies, present continuing medical education programs that were deceptive and 
lacked balance, and serve on the boards and committees of professional societies and patient 
advocacy groups that delivered messages and developed guidelines supporting chronic 
opioid therapy; and (e) funding, assisting, directing, and encouraging seemingly neutral and 
credible professional societies and patient advocacy groups (“Front Groups”) that developed 
educational materials and treatment guidelines that were then distributed by Defendants, 
which urged doctors to prescribe, and patients to use, opioids long-term to treat chronic 
pain. 

 
We are also bringing negligence claims against wholesale distributors of these 

opioids.  Under both federal and state law, wholesale distributors have a duty to report 
suspicious or alarming orders of opioid pharmaceuticals and to report these orders.  The 
evidence shows that these defendants failed to meet this duty despite overwhelming 
evidence that these drugs were being abused, diverted, and misused based on the alarming 
size of the orders.  These distributors such as McKesson, Cardinal Health, and 
AmerisourceBergen have paid hundred of millions of dollars in fines to date for their 
inaction.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

NAPOLILAW.COM  

360 Lexington Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (212)397-1000 

 

 
 
 

THEORY OF DAMAGES 
 

These lawsuits will seek to achieve financial recovery for each municipality for the costs 
associated with this epidemic, including substance abuse programs, insurance/Medicaid, lost 
productivity, foster care costs, narcan training and supplying, and increased law enforcement.  It 
is our hope that these lawsuits will help the municipalities receive funding to help in the fight 
against this epidemic.    

 
The below is an initial list of recoverable costs and expenses that a municipality may 

recoup in a lawsuit against the manufacturers and distributors of opioids.  These costs can be 
directly linked to departments within a country.  Napoli Shkolnik would work closely with the 
municipality and our experts in all aspects of the collection of information needed to prove 
damages and assist our clients in the collection of documents and data.   

• Coroner/medical examiner 
- Storage of bodies 
- Increased staffing 
- Indigent burials 
- Cemetery 

 
• Foster care 

- Family and child services 
- Increased staffing 
- Increase in need for care 
- Child support 

 
• Law enforcement (sheriff/police)/incarceration 

- Employee overtime 
- Narcan/Naloxone Hydrochloride Injection purchase and training 
- Establishment of task forces 
- Increase in investigation/crime increase 
- Specialized courts: juvenile, surrogate, drug, DUI, drug treatment, juvenile, probate 
- Public defender offices/prosecution 
- Jail/prison costs 
- Probation 
- Victim/family 
- Human trafficking 
- Adult detention 
- Neighborhood safety 
- Victim witness 

 
• Healthcare and first responders 

- Public hospitals 
- Public health 



 
 

 

 

NAPOLILAW.COM  

360 Lexington Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (212)397-1000 

 

-  
 

- Medicaid/Medicare 
- Substance abuse programs 
- Drug education programs 
- Drug prevention programs 
- Treatment centers/rehab 
- Mental health facilities 
- Veterans affairs 
- Fire 
- EMT/ambulance 
- Social services 

 
• “Loss” in various forms 

- Loss of productivity 
- Travel and tourism 
- Premature death 
- Decrease in labor participation 
- Crime increase 
- Quality of life 
- Increased sick time 
- Frequent firings 
- Price gauging 
- Workers compensation 
- Government assistance 
- Census 
- Public safety 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Working Together 
to Fight the  
Opioid Epidemic

2017

Overview

Verified Complaint

Litigation Details

Media

Facts



NAPOLI SHKOLNIK PLLC is uniquely positioned 
to take on the complex task of pursuing opioid litigation 
on behalf of government entities. The firm has a long and 
distinguished history of representing counties, cities, and 
other municipalities. It also has expertise in pharmaceu-
tical litigation. Indeed, state and federal courts across the 
country have appointed Napoli Shkolnik to leadership po-
sitions in many of the largest pharmaceutical cases ever 
filed and the firm has been involved in nearly every major 
pharmaceutical mass tort case over the last two decades.

Municipalities nationwide have already retained the firm 
to file actions against the manufacturers and distributors 
of opioid pain medications. Most recently, Napoli Shkol-
nik has filed actions on behalf of the City of Dayton, Ohio, 
which has been referred to as the “heroin epicenter” of 
the country; the City of Lorain, Ohio; and Nassau County, 
New York. The firm has also been retained by or is inves-
tigating claims for numerous other municipalities in West 
Virginia, Maine, New Hampshire, Ohio, New York, Michi-
gan, Texas, and other states. To date, Napoli Shkolnik rep-
resents nearly twenty municipalities across the country.

Napoli Shkolnik seeks to hold the 
manufacturers and distributors of 
opioids responsible for the damage 
they have caused.

The claims against the manufacturers of opioid pain 
medications include deceptive business practices, false 
advertising, public nuisance, violations of social services/
Medicaid law, fraud, and unjust enrichment. The claims 
are largely based on the deceptive practices that the 
manufacturer defendants used to reach prescribers and 
patients. The overarching theme of the manufacturer 

defendants’ deception is that opioid pain medications 
are not addictive and are safe for long-term use. But the 
manufacturers knew—and had known for years—that 
opioids are addictive and subject to abuse, particular-
ly when used long-term for chronic pain, and that they 
should not be used except as a last-resort.

Specifically, the manufacturer defendants spent hun-
dreds of millions of dollars to (a) develop and dissem-
inate seemingly truthful scientific and educational ma-
terials and advertising that misrepresents the risks, 
benefits, and superiority of opioids for long-term use to 
treat chronic pain; (b) deploy sales representatives who 

Overview

Napoli Shkolnik PLLC  
Nationwide Opioid Litigation

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017

Theory of Liability
The opioid epidemic has ravaged 
cities across the country.

Opioids claimed 175,000 American lives from 

1999-2013 and this number continues to grow;

From 1999 to 2010, a four-fold increase in opioid 

sales paralleled a more than four-fold increase in 

prescription opioid overdose deaths;

In the United States, prescription opioid abuse 

costs approximately $55.7 billion annually (CDC, 

Prescription Drug Overdose data);

Drug overdose is the leading cause of accidental 

death in the United States; and

91 Americans die each day from opioid overdose.

tel:8662680317
https://www.napolilaw.com/


visited doctors and other prescribers and delivered mis-
leading messages about the use of opioids; (c) recruit 
prescribing physicians as paid speakers to secure those 
physicians’ future “brand loyalty” and extend their reach 
to all physicians; (d) fund, assist, encourage, and direct 
certain doctors, known as “key opinion leaders,” to deliv-

er scripted talks, draft misleading studies, present decep-
tive continuing medical education programs, and serve 
on boards and committees of professional societies and 
patient advocacy groups that delivered messages and 
developed guidelines supporting chronic opioid thera-
py; and (e) fund, assist, direct, and encourage seemingly 
neutral and credible professional societies and patient 
advocacy groups (“Front Groups”) that developed edu-
cational materials and treatment guidelines that urged 
doctors to prescribe—and patients to use—opioids long-
term to treat chronic pain.

The firm is also bringing negligence claims against dis-
tributors of opioids. Under both federal and state law, 
distributors have a duty to report suspicious orders of 
opioids. These defendants failed to satisfy that duty de-
spite overwhelming evidence that opioids were being 
misused. Notably, these distributors have already paid 
hundreds of millions of dollars in fines for their inaction.

Overview

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
NEW YORK    CALIFORNIA    DELAWARE    FLORIDA   ILLINOIS    NEW JERSEY    PENNSYLVANIA    TEXAS

Theory of Damages
These lawsuits seek to recover the 

costs associated with the opioid 

epidemic, including, for example, 

substance abuse programs, insurance/Medicaid, 

lost productivity, foster care, Narcan training, and 

increased law enforcement. It is our hope that 

these lawsuits will help municipalities receive 

funding to help fight this epidemic.

tel:8662680317
https://www.napolilaw.com/


Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017

tel:8662680317
https://www.napolilaw.com/


Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
NEW YORK    CALIFORNIA    DELAWARE    FLORIDA   ILLINOIS    NEW JERSEY    PENNSYLVANIA    TEXAS



Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017



Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
NEW YORK    CALIFORNIA    DELAWARE    FLORIDA   ILLINOIS    NEW JERSEY    PENNSYLVANIA    TEXAS



Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017



Verified Complaint

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
NEW YORK    CALIFORNIA    DELAWARE    FLORIDA   ILLINOIS    NEW JERSEY    PENNSYLVANIA    TEXAS



Litigation Summary

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017

Claims

Violations of Consumer Protection Act/Fair 

Business Practices

Public Nuisance

Negligence

Fraud

Unjust Enrichment

Claims as to the Manufacturers

Falsely and fraudulently marketing opioids pain 

medications and safe and non-addictive. 

Failing to perform proper long-term studies 

regarding the effects of their drugs.

Generally, creating a false perception of the safety 

and efficacy of opioids in the medical community.

Claims as to the Distributors

Defendants’ conduct in failing to report suspicious 

orders as required by law. 

Defendants’ conduct in dispensing, supplying and/

or selling prescription opioids without adequate 

safeguards to prevent diversion.

Conduct proximately caused injury to the 

municipality and its citizens.

Relief Sought

Civil Penalties;

Treble damages;

Compensatory damages;

Punitive damages; and

Attorneys’ fees and costs.

Defendants
Manufacturers and marketers of prescription 
opioids

Purdue Pharma L.P.; 

Purdue Pharma Inc.; 

Purdue Frederick Company, Inc.; 

Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.; 

Cephalon, Inc.; 

Johnson & Johnson; 

Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

Janssen Pharmaceutical, Inc. n/k/a Janssen 

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

Ortho-McNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. n/k/a 

Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

Endo Health Solutions Inc.; 

Endo Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

Allergan plc f/k/a Actavis plc;

Actavis, Inc. f/k/a Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

Watson Laboratories, Inc.; and

Actavis LLC; and Actavis Pharma, Inc. f/k/a Watson 

Pharma, Inc.

Distributors of prescription 
opioids

McKesson Corporation;   

Cardinal Health Inc.; and

Amerisource Drug Corporation

We combine strong trial advocacy 
with the unparalleled use of 
technology in order to give  
our clients the best  
representation available.

HUNTER J. SHKOLNIK



In the Media

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
NEW YORK    CALIFORNIA    DELAWARE    FLORIDA   ILLINOIS    NEW JERSEY    PENNSYLVANIA    TEXAS

ABC 

Partner Marie 

Napoli in an ABC 7 

Eyewitness News 

exclusive, The Opioid 

Epidemic.

AlJazeera

Opioid  

Litigation attorney  

Salvatore Badala  

on  AlJazeera English.

FiOS 

Joseph Ciaccio,  

an attorney in the 

Opioid Lawsuits, on 

FiOS News 1.

ABC 

Salvatore Badala on 

suing pharmaceutical 

companies and 

doctors in opioid 

lawsuits.

The Wall Street Journal

Attorneys for Nassau County said in the lawsuit 

that the Long Island county has had to invest in 

health care and law enforcement as a result of the 

opioid addiction epidemic, and pay for training 

seminars for the overdose antidote naloxone.

Bloomberg News

Community budgets are stretched to the breaking 

point by the surge in addictions, overdoses and 

crime, which can be traced back to opioid abuse. 

“All these unexpected costs are crashing down on 

cities and leaving them scrambling to shift money 

around to keep things going,” said Hunter Shkolnik.

Fox Business

The lawsuit accuses the opioid distributors of 

negligence for failing to exercise care in the 

distribution of the drug. On Long Island, nearly 500 

people died from opioid overdoses last year, the 

highest number of deaths to date.

The Washington Post

As the epidemic spreads, more states are declaring  states of emergency and filing lawsuits. In NY, 8 counties  

have filed suits. Salvatore Badala, who filed a suit on behalf of Nassau County, said his client needs financial help. 

“It’s getting worse every day,” he said.

Daily News

Salvatore Badala said, “…these pharmaceutical 

companies are profiting hand over fist. We’re 

talking about a billion-dollar industry.” He added, 

“We’re in this for the long haul, and so is the 

county. We’re going to fight hard until

the end.”

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4j-kT15Yklk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=my-gkRnE-Yg
https://youtube.com/watch?v=yM5K_k_zbZQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7PfQATiN-ro


The Facts

(866) 268-0317  |  NAPOLILAW.COM
360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017

500,000
From 2000 to 2014 nearly 

 500,000 people died from 

 overdosing on opioids.

259 Million
In 2012 health care providers 

 wrote 259 million prescriptions 

for opioid painkillers— 

enough to medicate every  

adult in America around the 

clock for a month.

80%
Americans consume  

80% of  the opioids supplied  

around  the world and  

99% of the worldwide 

hydrocodone supply.

183,000
From 1999 to 2015, more 

than 183,000 people died in the 

U.S.  from overdoses related to 

prescription opioids. 

78 per Day
Seventy-eight Americans 

 die every day from  opioid 

overdoses.

4×
Since 1999, the amount  of 

prescription opioids sold  in 

the United States has  nearly 

quadrupled.

1 in 6
Of the 2,900 babies born  last 

year in Cabell County,  West 

Virginia, 500 had to be  weaned 

off of opioid dependence.

2 Million
By 2014, nearly two million 

 Americans were either abusing 

 or dependent on opioids.

1 in 4
CDC: 1 in 4 people who receive 

 opioids for non-cancer pain  in 

primary care settings  struggle 

with addiction. 

Opioid Addiction Affects
All Ages, Races and Genders

Co
py

ri
gh

t ©
 2

01
7 

N
ap

ol
i S

hk
ol

ni
k 

PL
LC

 A
tt

or
ne

ys
 a

t L
aw

. A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

 L
as

t u
pd

at
ed

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
7.

 A
tt

or
ne

y 
ad

ve
rt

is
in

g.
 P

ri
or

 r
es

ul
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 s
im

ila
r 

ou
tc

om
es

. T
hi

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
is

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

d 
on

ly
, 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

st
it

ut
e 

le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
efl

ec
t t

he
 m

os
t c

ur
re

nt
 le

ga
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

re
at

e 
an

 a
tt

or
ne

y-
cl

ie
nt

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p,
 o

nl
y 

a 
w

ri
tt

en
 c

on
tr

ac
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

ca
n 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
an

d 
at

to
rn

ey
-

cl
ie

nt
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p.

  N
ap

ol
i S

hk
ol

ni
k 

PL
LC

 a
nd

 a
ll 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
ng

 a
ut

ho
rs

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 d

is
cl

ai
m

 a
ll 

lia
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

it
h 

re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n.
 Im

ag
er

y 
us

ed
 in

 th
is

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

ut
ili

ze
d 

fic
ti

on
al

iz
ed

 e
ve

nt
s 

or
 

sc
en

es
 w

it
h 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
of

 m
od

el
s.

 F
or

 c
om

pl
et

e 
de

ta
ils

, r
ea

d 
ou

r 
Te

rm
s 

of
 U

se
 a

nd
 P

ri
va

cy
 P

ol
ic

y 
at

 n
ap

ol
ila

w
.c

om
.



Attorney Advertisement 

NAPOLI SHKOLNIK PLLC 
GOVERNMENT OPIOIDS COST RECOVERY PROGRAM 



Attorney Advertisement 

The Opioid Epidemic 

2 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 

In 2015, over 300 million prescriptions were written for opioids, 
which is more than enough to give every American adult their own 
bottle of pills.1 

 Hydrocodone (e.g., Vicodin) 

 Oxycodone (e.g., OxyContin) 

 Oxymorphone (e.g., Opana) 

 Methadone (especially when prescribed for pain) 

3 

(1) Ameet Sarpatwari, Michael S. Sinha, Aaron S. Kesselheim, “The Opioid Epidemic: Fixing a Broken Pharmaceutical Market”, Harvard Law & Policy Review, Volume 11, Number 2 (Summer, 2017): pp. 463-484. 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 

• Opioids have claimed 
175,000 lives from  
1999-2013. 

• In 2013 alone, 16,235 
deaths attributed to  
opioid overdoses. 

4 

(1) Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for Health Statistics. Underlying Cause of Death 1999-2015 on CDC WONDER Online Database, released December, 2016.  
Data are from the Multiple Cause of Death Files, 1999-2015, as compiled from data provided by the 57 vital statistics jurisdictions through the Vital Statistics Cooperative Program. Accessed at http://wonder.cdc.gov/ucd-icd10.html on 
Jul 26, 2017.  ICD-10 Codes: X40–X44, X60–X64, X85, and Y10–Y14 

• From 1999 to 2010, a 4-fold increases in opioid sales 
paralleled a more than 4-fold increase in prescription opioid 
overdose deaths. 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

50 

1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 

US Drug Overdose Deaths1 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 
Costs of the Opioid Epidemic 

5 

• In the United States, prescription 
opioid abuse costs are about 
$55.7 billion annually1 

Of this amount: 

– 46% is attributable to workplace 
costs (e.g., lost productivity): 
$26 Billion 

– 45% to healthcare costs (e.g., 
abuse treatment): $25 Billion 

– 9% to criminal justice costs:  
$5 Billion 

(1) Data Source: CDC, Prescription Drug Overdose data.  



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 
1 in 12 Doctors Being Paid by Pharmaceuticals Marketing Opioids 

6 

◊ 1 in 12 Doctors Being Paid by Pharmaceuticals Marketing 
Opioids:1 

◊ From 2013 to 2015 - more than 375,000 non-research opioid-related 
payments were made to more than 68,000 physicians, totaling more than 
$46 million 

◊ The Top 1% of Physicians Received 83% of the Payment 
◊ Family and General Practice Physicians received the most 

payments (almost 1 in 5) 
 

(1) Scott E. Hadland, Maxwell S. Krieger, Brandon D. L. Marshall, “Industry Payments to Physicians for Opioid Products, 2013–2015”, American Journal of Public Health 107, no. 9 (September 1, 2017): pp. 1493-1495.    
DOI: 10.2105/AJPH.2017.303982 
PMID: 28787210 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 
Over Prescription of Opioids a ‘Fundamental Cause’  

7 

◊ Opioid prescriptions rose 104% from 2000 to 20101 

◊ 300 million prescriptions for opioids were written in 2015 alone 
◊ More than one for every US adult 

◊ Surge in prescriptions may be traced back to undertreatment of chronic pain 
in the 1980s and 1990s 

(1) Ameet Sarpatwari, Michael S. Sinha, Aaron S. Kesselheim, “The Opioid Epidemic: Fixing a Broken  
Pharmaceutical Market”, Harvard Law & Policy Review, Volume 11, Number 2 (Summer, 2017): pp. 463-484. 
(2) Source for all prescribing data: QuintilesIMS Transactional Data Warehouse (TDW) 2006–2016.  Accessed at https://www.cdc.gov/drugoverdose/maps/rxrate-maps.html 

200 

210 

220 

230 

240 

250 

260 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Total Prescribed Opioids in the US2 

(2006-2012 in Millions) ◊ Many prominent physicians urged usage of opioids 
for pain – some stating that the risk of misuse and 
addiction was low 

◊ 1995 – Purdue Pharma received FDA approval for 
extended release OxyContin 

◊ Intensive marketing and limited policing of 
fraudulent activity leads to ‘blockbuster’ success for 
Purdue, OxyContin and other major opioids 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic  
The OxyContin Blockbuster 

“Purdue's success was attributable in part to low patenting 
standards that enabled the company to secure and extend 
market exclusivity for extended-release oxycodone, 
providing motivation for its aggressive marketing. 
 

A history of tepid enforcement against pharmaceutical 
companies engaging in illegal marketing further 
incentivized Purdue to make false claims  
about the safety and effectiveness of the 
 drug. Both practices helped drive opioid  
overuse and misuse, with tragic public  
health consequences.”* 

8 

*Ameet Sarpatwari, Michael S. Sinha, Aaron S. Kesselheim, “The Opioid Epidemic: 
Fixing a Broken Pharmaceutical Market”, Harvard Law & Policy Review, Volume 11, 
Number 2 (Summer, 2017): pp. 463-484. 

(1) US Department of Justice. Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System (ARCOS). Springfield, VA: US Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration; 2017.  
Available at http://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/arcos/index.html. Accessed July 25, 2017. 
(2) International Narcotics Control Board; World Health Organization population data By: Pain & Policy Studies Group, University of Wisconsin/WHO Collaborating Center, 2017  

4 4 5 
6 

8 

11 

15 

20 
22 

27 
29 

31 

37 

45 

49 

56 

64 64 
61 

57 57 58 
55 

1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 

Oxycodone 
Distribution and Consumption 

in Metric Tonnes 1,2 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 
Fentanyl & The Next Wave of the Opioid Epidemic 

9 

The next wave of the opioid crisis is an even 
more dangerous threat on our streets - Fentanyl.  
 
The surge of fentanyl is having a dramatic and 
deadly effect on our communities. 
 

-US House of Representatives Committee on 
Energy and Commerce1 

2,3 5 4 

0 

4 

8 

12 

16 

20 

0 

0.25 

0.5 

0.75 

1 

1.25 

1.5 

1.75 

2 

2.25 

2.5 

91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

O
D 

De
at

hs
/L

ab
 R

ep
or

ts
 (k

) 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

(m
g/

ca
pi

ta
) 

Fentanyl Distribution vs. Impact on the Street 
Distribution (mg/capita) Est. Fentanyl OD Deaths DEA Lab Reports (k) 

(1) Fentanyl: The Next Wave of the Opioid Crisis, Hearing Before the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations of the Committee on Energy and Commerce, United States House of Representatives, 115th Congress, 1st Session, 3-21-17 
(2) Data Source: US Department of Justice. Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System (ARCOS). Springfield, VA: US Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration; 2017.  
(3) Data Source 2: International Narcotics Control Board; World Health Organization population data By: Pain & Policy Studies Group, University of Wisconsin/WHO Collaborating Center, 2017 
(4) U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration, Diversion Control Division. (2017). NFLIS Brief: Fentanyl, 2001–2015. Springfield, VA: U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration.  
(5) Source: National Center for Health Statistics, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention  



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic 
Taxpayers Footing the Bill – Naloxone Costs & Distribution 

10 

◊ State, County and City programs to help individuals battling opioid abuse are needed, but 
can also further enable the opioid epidemic 
◊ First responders, law enforcement or others are being trained how to administer Buprenorphine/Naloxone 

(Narcan), the lifesaving antidote which is used to block the effects of opioids, especially in overdose 

◊ The increasing demand Narcan has led to pharmaceutical companies drastically increasing the price 

◊ Taxpayer funds are used to pay for Narcan, while both prices and pharmaceutical profits are sharply on the 
rise 

(1) US Department of Justice. Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System (ARCOS). Springfield, VA: US Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration; 2017.  
(2) Truven Health Analytics  



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

The Opioid Epidemic  
Medicare Part D Prescription Claim Costs on the Rise1 

11 

(1) Medicare Provider Utilization and Payment Data: Part D Prescriber Public Use File (PUF).  Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 
General Practice coded Specialties: Emergency Medicine, Family Practice, Family Medicine, General Practice, Internal Medicine, Pediatric Medicine, Physician Assistant  

$2.2 

$1.3 

$2.6 

$1.5 

$2.6 

$1.6 

$7.4 

$4.4 

$0.0 

$1.0 

$2.0 

$3.0 

$4.0 

$5.0 

$6.0 

$7.0 

General Practice Specialty Practice 

Claim Expense by Practice 
($ Billions) 

2013 2014 2015 

$0.3 
$0.2 $0.2 

$0.1 $0.1 $0.1 $0.1 
$0.1 

$0.4 

$0.3 
$0.3 

$0.1 
$0.1 $0.1 

$0.1 

$0.1 

$0.5 

$0.3 

$0.3 

$0.1 
$0.1 $0.1 

$0.1 

$0.1 

$1.2 

$0.9 

$0.7 

$0.3 
$0.3 $0.3 

$0.2 

$0.4 

$0.0 

$0.2 

$0.4 

$0.6 

$0.8 

$1.0 

$1.2 

Pain 
Management 

Rehabilitation Anesthesiology Surgery Oncology Neurology Rheumatology Other 
Specialties 

Claim Expense by Specialty Practice Area 
2013-2015 in $ Billions 

2013 2014 2015 

$3.4 

$3.5 

$3.6 

$3.7 

$3.8 

$3.9 

$4.0 

$4.1 

$4.2 

$4.3 

2013 2014 2015 

Total US Claim Expense 
($ Billions) 



Attorney Advertisement 

Why File a Lawsuit? 

12 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Why File a Lawsuit? 
City or County Cause of Action is Preferable to Waiting for the State 

13 

◊ We believe that the effects of the opioid epidemic have 
been felt strongly at the City and County level   

◊ Cities and Counties have experienced significant financial 
costs that are separate and distinct from the State 

◊ The goal of a lawsuit on behalf of the City or County 
individually would be to leave the power of accepting a 
settlement and distribution of any recovery to the City or 
County, as opposed to giving control to the State  



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Why File a Lawsuit? 
Previous Manufacturer or Distributor Fines 

14 

Purdue 
$635 M 

 
For OxyContin 

McKesson 
$150 M 

Cardinal 
Health 
$44 M Amerisourcebergen 

$16 M 

◊ Purdue: 
◊ $634.5 Million - Fined (2007) for claiming the drug was less 

addictive and less subject to abuse 

◊ McKesson 
◊ $150 Million – Fined (2017) for failure to report suspicious orders of 

drugs 

◊ Cardinal Health 
◊ $44 Million – Fined (2016) for failure to report 

suspicious orders of drugs 

◊ Amerisourcebergen 
◊ $16 Million – Fined (2016) for 

failure to report suspicious 
orders of drugs 

 

Previous Significant Fines 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Why File a Lawsuit? 
Previous Manufacturer or Distributor Settlements 

15 

Purdue 
$24 M 

 
For OxyContin 

 
Settlement with 

State of Kentucky 

Purdue 
$4 M 

 
Settlement with  
Pike County, KY Teva 

$1.6 M 
 

Settlement with 
Two Counties in 

California 

Endo 
$200k 

 

Settlement w/ 
State of New 

York 

◊ Purdue: 
◊ $24 Million – (2013) Settlement with State of Kentucky 
◊ $4 Million – (2013) Settlement with Pike County, KY, in both Purdue was accused 

of misleading the public about the addictiveness of OxyContin 
◊ Galena Biopharma - $7.5 Million – (2017) Resolved settlement 

paid kickbacks to doctors in exchange for prescribing fentanyl-
based Abstral 

◊ Teva: - $1.6 Million – (2017) Santa Clara and Orange 
County, California alleging misleading marketing 
practices 

◊ Endo - $200,000 – (2016) 
◊ Settlement w/ NY State 

for misleading 
marketing around the 
risks associated with 
Opana ER 

Substantial Settlements Underway  

Galena 
$7.5 M 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Why File a Lawsuit? 
Napoli Shkolnik is Representing Municipalities Across the Country 

16 

West Virginia 
• Hancock County 
• Brooke County 
• Ohio County 
• Marshall County 
• Wetzel County 
• Tyler County 
• Harrison County 
• Lewis County 

New York 
• Cattaraugus County 
• Chautauqua County 
• Chemung County 
• Nassau County 
• Niagara County 
• Rensselaer County 
• Schuyler County 
• Orleans County  
 

 

Ohio 
• City of Dayton 
• City of Lorain 
• City of Parma 
• Richland County 

Children’s Services 

Other Examples 
• City of Manchester, NH 
• County of Mora, NM 
• Borough of Richland, NJ 
• Saddle Brook, NJ 
• Floyd County, KY 
• Pike County, KY  
• City of Portland, ME 
• City of Lewiston, ME 
• Seat Pleasant, MD 

◊ Napoli Shkolnik has the means to take on 
large pharmaceutical manufacturers and 
distributors 

◊ We are representing many municipalities 
across the country and signing up more 
every day  

This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated confidential Attorney Advertisement 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

• The Napoli Shkolnik investment into the Government Opioid 
Costs Recovery Program is a risk we take because we care and 
believe that we can be successful 

• Most firms cannot invest what is required to be successful in 
similar national litigation 

• Many firms do not have the resources to properly calculate 
your damages, and that can be disastrous if your City or County 
does not get a full return on the damages rightfully owed 

• Napoli Shkolnik is committed to utilizing every resource in 
order to achieve a win for your City or County 

17 

Why File a Lawsuit? 
Our Investment in the Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 



Attorney Advertisement 

Cause of Action 

18 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Defendants 

• Manufacturers and marketers of prescription opioids include: 

19 

• Distributors of prescription opioids include:  
– McKesson Corporation;    
– Cardinal Health Inc.; and 
– Amerisource Drug Corporation 

 

– Purdue Pharma L.P.;  
– Purdue Pharma Inc.;  
– Purdue Frederick Company, Inc.;  
– Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.;  
– Cephalon, Inc.;  
– Johnson & Johnson;  
– Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;  
– Janssen Pharmaceutical, Inc. n/k/a Janssen 

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;  
– Ortho-McNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

n/k/a Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;  

– Endo Health Solutions Inc.;  
– Endo Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;  
– Allergan plc f/k/a Actavis plc;  
– Actavis, Inc. f/k/a Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;  
– Watson Laboratories, Inc.; and 
– Actavis LLC; and Actavis Pharma, Inc. f/k/a 

Watson Pharma, Inc.  



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Claims  

• Violations of Consumer Protection Act/Fair Business Practices 

• Violations of State Controlled Substances Act 

• Public Nuisance 

• Negligence 

• Fraud 

• Unjust Enrichment 

 

20 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Claims as to the Manufacturers 

• Falsely and fraudulently marketing opioids pain medications 
and safe and non-addictive.  

• Failing to perform proper long term studies regarding the 
effects of their drugs. 

• Generally, creating a false perception of the safety and 
efficacy of opioids in the medical community. 

 

21 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Claims as to the Distributors  

• Defendants’ conduct in failing to report suspicious orders as 
required by law.  

• Defendants’ conduct in dispensing, supplying and/or selling 
prescription opioids without adequate safeguards to prevent 
diversion. 

• Conduct proximately caused injury to the municipality and its 
citizens. 

 

22 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Relief Sought 

• Civil Penalties 

• Treble damages 

• Compensatory damages 

• Punitive damages 

• Attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 

23 



Attorney Advertisement 

Working Together  
To Fight the Opioid Epidemic 

24 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

About Napoli Shkolnik 
Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion 

13% 

10% 

5% 

0% 

2% 

4% 

6% 

8% 

10% 

12% 

Hispanic American African American Asian American 

Minority Employees  
As % of Total Staff 

Female 
52.4% Male 

47.6% 

Employee Gender 
As % of Total Staff 

◊ Napoli Shkolnik is committed to diversity, 
equity and inclusion at all levels and  
in every action  

◊ Our embrace of diversity, equity, and inclusion 
fosters engagement with expansive and varied 
points of view and enables true ongoing 
transformation of our practice 

Minority 
28.7% 

Non-
Minority 

71.3% 

25 



Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

About Napoli Shkolnik 
Opioid Related Media Appearances 

Community budgets are stretched to the breaking point by the surge in 
addictions, overdoses and crime, which can be traced back to opioid 
abuse. “All these unexpected costs are crashing down on cities and 
leaving them scrambling to shift money around to keep things 
going,” Hunter Shkolnik told Bloomberg News. 
  

 
 
Lead attorney Salvatore Badala spoke with the New York Daily News, 
the legal battle could take years but Badala said, “…these 
pharmaceutical companies are profiting hand over first. We’re talking 
about a billion-dollar industry.” He added, “We’re in this for the long 
haul, and so is the county. We’re going to fight hard until the end.” 
  

 
As the New Hampshire Union Leader reported, the alderman voted 
unanimously to authorize the city solicitor to join the suit on behalf of 
the city. 

 

Television Print 

26 

https://www.napolilaw.com/napoli-attorney/hunter-shkolnik/
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2017-06-14/opioid-costs-push-struggling-states-to-dust-off-tobacco-strategy
http://www.nydailynews.com/new-york/nassau-county-sue-big-pharma-opioid-epidemic-article-1.3232606
https://www.napolilaw.com/wp-content/uploads/5-2-17-Union-Leader-Manchester-aldermen-vote-to-join-possible-suit-against-pharmaceutical-companies-.pdf


Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program 

Attorney Advertisement This document includes attorney strategy and other internal, private matters that should be treated as confidential 

Napoli Shkolnik PLLC 
360 Lexington Avenue, 11th Floor 
New York, New York 10017 
(212) 397-1000 

About Napoli Shkolnik 
Principal Office 

27 

Copyright © 2017 Napoli Shkolnik PLLC Attorneys at Law. All rights reserved. Last updated August 2017. Attorney advertising. Prior 
results do not guarantee similar outcomes. This publication is for informational purposed only, does not constitute legal advice and 
may not reflect the most current legal developments. This publication does not create an attorney-client relationship, only a written 
contract between the parties can establish and attorney-client relationship. Napoli Shkolnik PLLC and all contributing authors 
expressly disclaim all liability to any person with respect to the contents of this publication. For complete details, read our Terms of 
Use and Privacy Policy at napolilaw.com. 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 04-11062017 
  

COUNCIL RESOLVE 

City of Auburn 

 
Resolve,  Authorizing the City Manager to engage the services of Napoli Scholnik, PLLC and Trafton, 

Matzen, Belleau & Frenette, LLP on behalf of the City of Auburn with Respect to Prosecution 

of any Legal Claims Against Manufacturers and Distributors of Opioids Arising out of the 

Fraudulent and Negligent Marketing and Distribution of Opioids. 

 

Whereas, in 2015, over 300 million prescriptions were written for opioids, which is sufficient to provide 

every American adult with their own bottle of pills; and 

 

Whereas, opioids have claimed 175,000 lives from 1999 to 2013; and 

 

Whereas, from 1999 to 2010, a four-fold increase in opioid sales paralleled a more than fourfold increase 

in prescription opioid overdose deaths; and 

 

Whereas, in the United States, prescription opioid abuse costs are estimated at $55.7 billion annually; and 

 

Whereas, the Maine overdose death rates continue to rise and remain above the U.S. average; and 

 

Whereas, drug deaths in Androscoggin County have increased substantially in recent years and now are 

similar to average rates throughout Maine; and 

 

Whereas, the effects of the opioid epidemic have been felt strongly at the City level where we are seeing 

significant financial costs associated with the rise of opioid addiction; and 

 

Whereas, the actions of companies marketing and distributing opioid drugs have contributed significantly to 

these issues through activities including: knowingly claiming that prescription opioids are less 

addictive and less subject to abuse than other opioid forms; failing to report suspicious orders of 

drugs; misleading marketing practices; negligence; and generally creating a false perception of 

the safety and efficacy of opioids in the medical community; and 

 

Whereas, pursuing a claim against these organizations is intended to recover the City's costs relating to 

the opioid crisis and to change the practices of those engaged in opioid marketing and 

distribution; and 

 

Whereas, should the City recover damages through these proceedings, it is the intention of the City 

Council that amounts recovered be used to support law enforcement, education, and treatment 

efforts aimed at combating this epidemic; 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Auburn that 

 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to engage the services of Napoli Scholnik, PLLC and Trafton, 

Matzen, Belleau & Frenette, LLP on behalf of the City of Auburn on a contingent fee basis with respect 

to prosecution of any legal claims against manufacturers and distributors of opioids arising out of their 

fraudulent and negligent marketing and distribution of opioids. 

 

Be it Further Resolved, that 

 

It is the intention of the City Council that any proceeds received from the City as a result of these 

proceedings be dedicated in full to law enforcement, educational, and treatment efforts aimed at 

combating the opioid epidemic in our community. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Peter Crichton, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    September 2017 Financial Report 

DATE:  October 17, 2017 
 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s September 
financial report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by 
the School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt 
to explain any variances for the School Department. 
 

The City has completed its third month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking purposes, 
revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 25.0% of the annual budget.  However, 
not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items can vary 
based upon cyclical activity.    
 

Revenues 
 

Revenues collected through September 30th, including the school department were $30,644,369, or 
36.71%, of the budget. The municipal revenues including property taxes were $26,497,118, or 44.37% 
of the budget which is less than the same period last year by 0.50%. The accounts listed below are 
noteworthy. 

 

A. September 15th the first installment for real estate taxes were due. The current year 
tax revenue is at 48.62% as compared to 49.76% last year.  
 

B. Excise tax for the month of September is at 26.66%. This is a $12,362 decrease from FY 
17. Our excise revenues for FY18 are 1.66% above projections as of September 30, 
2017.  

 

C. State Revenue Sharing for the month of September is 24.84% or $374,915. This is $22, 
024 increase from this September to last September.  
 

 



 2 

D. Homestead Exemption is 80.97% of budget at the end of September. We received 75% 
of our allotted amount in September and we will receive the balance in June. 
 

E. Business and Non-Business Licenses and Permits are at 33.53% of budget due to 
business licences, non-business licenses and permits coming in higher than 
anticipated. 
 
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through September 2017 were $14,869,527 or 34.85%, of the budget. This is 4.64% 
increase from the same period last year. Noteworthy variances are: 
 

A. County tax was paid and posted in September this year and not until October last year. 
This is an increase of $2,296,224 posted in September which is the majority of the 
difference from last year. 

 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of September 30th.  Currently the City’s funds are 
earning an average interest rate of .72%.  
 
 
         
        Respectfully submitted, 

        
          

Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED
September 30 August 31 Increase JUNE 30

2017 2017 (Decrease) 2016
ASSETS

CASH 19,615,567$         12,768,632$       6,846,935$           11,951,131$       
RECEIVABLES -                        
  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 1,620,036             1,648,903           (28,867)                 2,429,419           
  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 22,698,064           40,802,001         (18,103,937)          37,898                
  DELINQUENT TAXES 678,702                682,599              (3,897)                   571,005              
  TAX LIENS 1,284,174             1,375,385           (91,211)                 1,721,395           
  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 5,318,120             2,832,645           2,485,475             266,370              

 
TOTAL ASSETS 51,214,663$         60,110,165$       (8,895,502)$          16,977,218$       

 
 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (128,876)$             (29,147)$             (99,729)$               (1,935,471)$        
PAYROLL LIABILITIES (1,137,450)            (1,534,320)          396,870                -                      
ACCRUED PAYROLL -                        -                      -                        (2,329,832)          
STATE FEES PAYABLE (20,537)                 (55,333)               34,796                  -                      
ESCROWED AMOUNTS (3,326)                   (2,826)                 (500)                      (6,039)                 
DEFERRED REVENUE (24,495,459)          (42,694,504)        18,199,045           (1,860,686)          

 
     TOTAL LIABILITIES (25,785,648)$        (44,316,130)$      18,530,482$         (6,132,028)$        

 
FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (24,338,062)$        (14,703,082)$      (9,634,980)$          (8,018,394)$        
FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  
     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 776,017                776,017              -                        

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          0                           (2,826,796)          
 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (25,429,015)$        (15,794,035)$      (9,634,980)$          (10,845,190)$      
 

  
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (51,214,663)$        (60,110,165)$      8,895,502$           (16,977,218)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of September 2017, August 2017, and June 2016 



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH September 30, 2017 VS September 30, 2016

ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
TAXES
  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 48,061,530$           23,369,198$      48.62% 46,032,435$     22,907,842$      49.76% 461,356$          
  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVENUE -$                        308,904$            -$                 303,089$            5,815$              
  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 1,015,000$             821,845$           80.97% 750,000$          569,088$           75.88% 252,757$          
  EXCISE 3,810,000$             1,015,690$        26.66% 3,365,000$       1,028,052$        30.55% (12,362)$          
  PENALTIES & INTEREST 150,000$                22,047$             14.70% 150,000$          24,863$             16.58% (2,816)$            

     TOTAL TAXES 53,036,530$           25,537,683$      48.15% 50,297,435$     24,832,934$      49.37% 704,749$          
  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   
  BUSINESS 62,000$                  10,472$             16.89% 48,000$            11,303$             23.55% (831)$               
  NON-BUSINESS 345,000$                125,993$           36.52% 427,384$          124,137$           29.05% 1,856$              

     TOTAL LICENSES 407,000$                136,465$           33.53% 475,384$          135,440$           28.49% 1,025$              
  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   
  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 400,000$                -$                   0.00% 400,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,509,117$             374,915$           24.84% 1,468,313$       352,891$           24.03% 22,024$            
  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 95,000$                  24,097$             25.37% 59,000$            -$                   0.00% 24,097$            
  OTHER STATE AID 32,000$                  472$                  1.48% 22,000$            -$                   0.00% 472$                 
  CITY OF LEWISTON 228,384$                -$                   0.00% 160,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,264,501$             399,485$           17.64% 2,109,313$       352,891$           16.73% 46,594$            

  
CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 144,440$                33,541$             23.22% 132,640$          20,751$             15.64% 12,790$            
  PUBLIC SAFETY 236,277$                38,668$             16.37% 139,077$          23,419$             16.84% 15,249$            
  EMS TRANSPORT 1,250,000$             233,023$           18.64% 1,250,000$       267,734$           21.42% (34,711)$          

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,630,717$             305,231$           18.72% 1,521,717$       311,904$           20.50% (6,673)$            
  

FINES   
  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 70,000$                  9,856$               14.08% 65,000$            14,827$             22.81% (4,971)$            

   
MISCELLANEOUS    
  INVESTMENT INCOME 32,000$                  9,552$               29.85% 10,000$            3,720$               37.20% 5,832$              
  RENTS 35,000$                  11,575$             33.07% 18,000$            9,873$               54.85% 1,702$              
  UNCLASSIFIED 10,000$                  13,545$             135.45% 10,000$            19,787$             197.87% (6,242)$            
  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        11,772$              -$                 22,017$              (10,245)$          
  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  7,358$               36.79% 20,000$            10,427$             52.14% (3,069)$            
  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA  -$                 -$                    -$                 
  MMWAC HOST FEES 215,000$                54,596$             25.39% 210,000$          53,443$             25.45% 1,153$              
  TRANSFER IN: TIF 1,287,818$             -$                   0.00% 1,537,818$       -$                   0.00% -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: REC SPEC REVENUE 54,718$                  -$                   0.00% 54,718$            0.00% -$                 
  ENERGY EFFICIENCY  -$                 1,625$                (1,625)$            
  CDBG 214,430$                -$                   0.00% 254,127$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 27,500$                  -$                   0.00% 27,500$            -$                   0.00% -$                 
  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 412,500$                -$                   0.00% 825,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,308,966$             108,398$           4.69% 2,967,163$       120,892$           4.07% (12,494)$          

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 59,717,714$           26,497,118$      44.37% 57,436,012$     25,768,888$      44.87% 728,230$          

SCHOOL REVENUES
  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 22,039,568$           4,134,849$        18.76% 21,373,337$     3,970,412$        18.58% 164,437$          
  EDUCATION 811,744$                12,403$             1.53% 814,540$          53,257$             6.54% (40,854)$          
  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 906,882$                -$                   0.00% 906,882$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 23,758,194$           4,147,251$        17.46% 23,094,759$     4,023,669$        17.42% 123,582$          

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 83,475,908$           30,644,369$      36.71% 80,530,771$     29,792,557$      37.00% 851,812$          

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  
FY 2018 EXP % OF FY 2017 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATION
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 80,300$                43,570$              54.26% 78,464$          12,315$              15.70% 31,255$        
   CITY MANAGER 581,170$              103,535$            17.81% 378,880$        82,161$              21.69% 21,374$        
   CITY CLERK 181,332$              37,405$              20.63% 177,906$        34,605$              19.45% 2,800$          
   FINANCIAL SERVICES 675,239$              155,804$            23.07% 637,754$        154,442$            24.22% 1,362$          
   HUMAN RESOURCES 156,887$              37,745$              24.06% 150,435$        23,200$              15.42% 14,545$        
   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 531,551$              121,986$            22.95% 479,324$        122,963$            25.65% (977)$            
   LEGAL SERVICES -$                          -$                         45,650$          28,348$              62.10% (28,348)$       

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,206,479$           500,045$            22.66% 1,948,413$     458,034$            23.51% 42,011$        

COMMUNITY SERVICES
   ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,717,028$           278,427$            16.22% 1,938,437$     277,163$            14.30% 1,264$          
   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 220,870$              73,442$              33.25% 171,474$        46,145$              26.91% 27,297$        
   RECREATION & SPECIAL EVENTS* 388,581$              75,847$              19.52% 341,772$        65,976$              19.30% 9,871$          
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 998,189$              249,547$            25.00% 979,516$        161,519$            16.49% 88,028$        

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,324,668$           677,263$            20.37% 3,431,199$     550,803$            16.05% 126,460$      
 

FISCAL SERVICES
   DEBT SERVICE 6,366,533$           5,359,284$         84.18% 6,406,845$     5,416,910$         84.55% (57,626)$       
   FACILITIES 640,201$              202,599$            31.65% 645,756$        342,913$            53.10% (140,314)$     
   WORKERS COMPENSATION 555,164$              -$                        0.00% 522,088$        -$                        0.00% -$                  
   WAGES & BENEFITS 5,960,970$           1,516,102$         25.43% 5,274,528$     1,484,062$         28.14% 32,040$        
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 415,454$              -$                        0.00% 375,289$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 13,938,322$         7,077,985$         50.78% 13,224,506$   7,243,885$         54.78% (165,900)$     

PUBLIC SAFETY
   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,227,575$           1,084,589$         25.66% 4,049,396$     1,040,889$         25.70% 43,700$        
   FIRE EMS 708,828$              161,635$            22.80% 590,997$        179,134$            30.31% (17,499)$       
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,043,998$           889,306$            21.99% 3,875,113$     881,199$            22.74% 8,107$          

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 8,980,401$           2,135,530$         23.78% 8,515,506$     2,101,222$         24.68% 34,308$        

PUBLIC WORKS
   PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4,611,116$           881,890$            19.13% 4,496,349$     874,018$            19.44% 7,872$          
   SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL* 964,118$              188,067$            19.51% 932,689$        147,819$            15.85% 40,248$        
   WATER AND SEWER 632,716$              158,179$            25.00% 599,013$        146,627$            24.48% 11,552$        

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 6,207,950$           1,228,136$         19.78% 6,028,051$     1,168,464$         19.38% 59,672$        

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS
   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 167,800$              166,664$            99.32% 106,000$        29,269$              27.61% 137,395$      
   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,088,857$           267,731$            24.59% 1,088,857$     267,281$            24.55% 450$             
   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 189,949$              189,949$            100.00% 182,244$        182,244$            100.00% 7,705$          
   LA ARTS -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                         -$                  
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              -$                        0.00% 270,000$        18,015$              6.67% (18,015)$       

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,716,606$           624,344$            36.37% 1,647,101$     496,809$            30.16% 127,535$      

COUNTY TAX 2,296,224$           2,296,224$         100.00% 2,167,824$     -$                        0.00% 2,296,224$   
TIF (10108058-580000) 3,049,803$           -$                        0.00% 2,824,803$     -$                        0.00% -$                  
OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  
TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 41,720,453$         14,539,527$       34.85% 39,787,403$   12,019,217$       30.21% 2,520,310$   

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 41,755,455$         4,114,334$         9.85% 40,743,368$   2,603,419$         6.39% 1,510,915$   
  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 83,475,908$         18,653,861$       22.35% 80,530,771$   14,622,636$       18.16% 4,031,225$   

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH September 30, 2017 VS September 30, 2016



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
AS OF September 30, 2017

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST
INVESTMENT FUND September 30, 2017 August 31, 2017 RATE

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 449 CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,188,798.41$              2,187,539.55$              0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 502 SR-TIF 1,010,036.16$              1,009,455.25$              0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 836 GENERAL FUND 984,326.77$                 983,729.99$                 0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 801 WORKERS COMP 50,457.95$                   50,428.93$                   0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 748 UNEMPLOYMENT 50,457.84$                   50,428.82$                   0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 684 EMS CAPITAL RESERVE 331,871.48$                 331,680.61$                 0.45%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 CAPITAL PROJECTS 750,000.00$                 750,000.00$                 1.15%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 0.70%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.00%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.15%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.25%

GRAND TOTAL 7,365,948.61$              7,363,263.15$              0.72%



Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

09/01/17 New Charges Payments Adjustments Write-Offs 9/30/2017

Bluecross 3,083.37$       8,771.40$        (4,175.58)$      (3,217.02)$       4,462.17$      
Intercept -$                 400.00$           (100.00)$         300.00$          
Medicare 90,341.59$     73,260.80$      (31,393.13)$    (43,238.51)$     88,970.75$    
Medicaid 40,383.21$     27,171.80$      (16,635.48)$    (20,901.34)$     30,018.19$    
Other/Commercial 82,496.06$     28,178.40$      (17,506.93)$    (6,163.59)$       87,003.94$    
Patient 544,926.66$  11,348.00$      (6,911.66)$      (721.40)$           (66,167.42)$  482,474.18$  
Worker's Comp 1,656.39$       -$                  (685.00)$         971.39$          

TOTAL 762,887.28$  149,130.40$   (77,407.78)$   (74,241.86)$     (66,167.42)$  694,200.62$  

September 2017

EMS BILLING 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018
Report as of September 30, 2017



July August Sept % of
2017 2017 2015 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information -$                 0.00%
Bluecross 7,616.80$       5,319.60$       8,771.40$          873.80$         22,581.60$    4.21%
Intercept 200.00$          400.00$              600.00$          0.11%
Medicare 93,981.80$     121,672.00$  73,260.80$        (15,096.60)$  273,818.00$  50.99%
Medicaid 29,998.80$     33,361.80$    27,171.80$        4,174.60$      94,707.00$    17.64%
Other/Commercial 26,335.20$     31,967.40$    28,178.40$        14,113.80$    100,594.80$  18.73%
Patient 15,784.20$     20,029.80$    11,348.00$        (4,065.60)$    43,096.40$    8.03%
Worker's Comp 872.40$          685.00$          1,557.40$       0.29%

TOTAL 174,789.20$  213,035.60$  149,130.40$      -$                536,955.20$  100.00%

July August Sept % of
2017 2017 2015 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 0 0.00%
Bluecross 9 7 11 27 3.90%
Intercept 2 4 6 0.87%
Medicare 117 151 98 366 52.89%
Medicaid 39 44 36 119 17.20%
Other/Commercial 36 41 36 113 16.33%
Patient 20 25 14 59 8.53%
Worker's Comp 1 1 2 0.29%

TOTAL 224 269 199 0 692 100.00%

TOTAL REVENUE COLLECTED AS OF 09/30/17 $233,022.73
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AS OF 09/30/17 $161,634.50

Report as of September 30, 2017
July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL CHARGES

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL COUNT

Report as of September 30, 2017



Current 31-60 61-90 91-120 121+ days Totals

Bluecross 4,234.24$       63% 2,268.47$       34% -$                 0% -$                 0% 227.53$          3% 6,730.24$            0.97%
Intercept 400.00$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 400.00$               0.06%
Medicare 37,225.37$     92% 2,213.86$       5% -$                 0% 1,324.68$       3% (294.70)$         -1% 40,469.21$          5.83%
Medicaid 30,115.37$     68% 5,795.93$       13% 1,430.99$       3% 775.95$          2% 5,861.00$       13% 43,979.24$          6.34%
Other/Commercial 32,801.33$     48% 7,434.42$       11% 7,313.32$       11% 3,959.08$       6% 16,825.75$     25% 68,333.90$          9.84%
Patient 30,982.93$     6% 34,797.02$     7% 27,806.81$     5% 13,578.83$     3% 426,151.05$  80% 533,316.64$       76.82%
Worker's Comp -$                 0% 971.39$          -$                 -$                 0% -$                 971.39$               0.14%

TOTAL 135,759.24$  53,481.09$     36,551.12$     19,638.54$     448,770.63$  694,200.62$       

20% 8% 5% 3% 65% 100% 100.00%

EMS BILLING 
AGING REPORT

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Report as of September 30, 2017



CITY OF AUBURN
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
As of September 30, 2017

. 1902 1905 1910 1913 1914 1915 1917 1922 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931
Winter Community Police Fitness Oak Hill Fire Training Wellness Walmart Healthy Insurance Fire 211

Riverwatch Festival Service Equipment Cemeteries Building Grant Risk/Homeless Androscoggin Reimbursement Vending Prevention Fairview Donations
Fund Balance 7/1/17 972,422.92$    (1,530.30)$              4,380.34$          5,932.53$            27,343.39$           (1,488.84)$           4,582.27$            6,378.18$            1,784.05$              925.21$                 (83.88)$                4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          2,069.13$           

Revenues FY18 15,003.63$      134.00$             200.00$                 960.94$                900.00$                 354.00$               

Expenditures FY18 106,052.65$    415.00$                60.94$                  2,100.00$              111.29$               216.50$              

Fund Balance 9/30/17 881,373.90$   (1,530.30)$              4,514.34$          5,932.53$            27,543.39$           (1,488.84)$           4,167.27$            7,278.18$            584.05$                 925.21$                 158.83$               4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          1,852.63$           

2003 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 2013 2014 2019 2020 2025 2030 2032 2033
Byrne Seatbelt Homeland State Drug OUI Speed Law Enforcement Community Safe School/
JAG MDOT PEACE Grant Security Money Grant Grant Training CDBG Cords Parking HEAPP Health (COPS)

Fund Balance 7/1/17 2,808.57$        (300,767.41)$         4,155.42$          2,197.62$            (73,633.75)$          14,432.07$          6,210.37$            8,831.00$            (5,669.72)$             4,323,336.57$      29,316.61$          11,690.86$         (4,994.50)$               (15,906.07)$       

Revenues FY18 -$                  25.00$                  2,550.00$              11,614.66$           612.00$               28,322.00$         

Expenditures FY18 107.45$             3,412.58$            6,615.09$            6,702.00$            1,285.00$              382,874.03$         63,975.58$         

Fund Balance 9/30/17 2,808.57$        (300,767.41)$         4,047.97$          2,197.62$            (73,633.75)$          11,044.49$          (404.72)$              2,129.00$            (4,404.72)$            3,952,077.20$      29,928.61$         (23,962.72)$       (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

2037 2038 2040 2041 2044 2045 2046 2048 2050 2052 2053 2054 2055 2056
Bulletproof Community Great Falls Blanche Federal Drug Forest Joint Land Use TD Tree Project Nature St Louis EMS Transport Work4ME- Lake Auburn

Vests Action Team TV Stevens Money Management Study Days Grant Lifesaver Conservancy Bells Capital Reserve PAL Neighborhood
Fund Balance 7/1/17 8,478.66$        7,206.21$               45,319.88$        47,037.73$          16,988.54$           4,436.52$            0.57$                    -$                      150.00$                 975.05$                 2,357.75$            331,362.88$       (13,692.41)$            125.00$              

Revenues FY18 3,940.00$            9,223.62$             50.00$                    317.73$               

Expenditures FY18 10,828.00$        943.28$                7,223.53$                

Fund Balance 9/30/17 8,478.66$        7,206.21$               34,491.88$       50,034.45$          26,212.16$           4,436.52$            0.57$                    -$                      200.00$                 975.05$                 2,357.75$            331,680.61$      (20,915.94)$            125.00$              

2057 2058 2059 2060 2201 2500
ASPCA Barker Mills Distracted My Life EDI Parks &
Grant Greenway Driving My Choice JJAG Grant Recreation

Fund Balance 7/1/17 800.00$            (2,597.43)$              301.00$             -$                      (1,484,407.18)$    191,966.40$        

Revenues FY18 53,341.68$          

Expenditures FY18 9,645.00$          2,000.00$            134,466.23$        

Fund Balance 9/30/17 800.00$           (2,597.43)$              (9,344.00)$        (2,000.00)$           (1,484,407.18)$    110,841.85$        

2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 Total
Tambrands J Enterprises Tambrands II J & A Properties Formed Fiber Mall Downtown Safe Handling Auburn Industrial Auburn Plaza Auburn Plaza II Webster School Bedard Pharm Slapshot LLC Hartt  Transport Special

TIF 4 TIF 5 TIF 6 TIF 7 TIF 8 TIF 9 TIF 10 TIF 11 TIF 12 TIF 13 TIF 14 TIF 16 TIF 17 TIF 18 TIF 19 Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/17 (8,073.02)$       14,500.44$             (365,270.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           149,591.94$        (4,529.96)$           183.21$                (350,651.92)$        (37,076.39)$          9,722.38$            360.91$               31,366.79$              47,165.25$         (5.40)$                 3,140,347.13$   

Revenues FY18 127,549.26$      

Expenditures FY18 541.20$            422,036.00$        9,084.78$            154,289.00$          17,979.00$          69,010.56$         1,411,974.69$   

Fund Balance 9/30/17 (8,614.22)$       14,500.44$             (365,270.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           (272,444.06)$      (13,614.74)$         183.21$                (504,940.92)$        (37,076.39)$          (8,256.62)$          360.91$              31,366.79$              (21,845.31)$       (5.40)$                 1,855,921.70$   



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Financial Reports for September, 2017  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Ingersoll Turf Facility for revenue and expenditures as of September 30, 2017.  
 
INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets as of 
September 30, 2017.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of September 2017 the total current assets of Ingersoll Turf Facility were $26,675. This 
consisted of an interfund recievable of $26,675.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building and equipment that was purchased, less depreciation. The 
total value of the noncurrent assets as of September 30, 2017 was $167,406.  
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had accounts payable of $172 as of September 30, 2017.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Turf Facility through September 2017 are $7,339. This revenue 
comes from the sponsorships, programs, rental income and batting cages. 
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Turf Facility through September 2076 were $29,593. These 
expenses include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
As of September 2017 Ingersoll has an operating loss of $22,254.  
 
As of September 30, 2016 Ingersoll has a decrease in net assets of $22,254. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, show the revenue and expenditures for 
FY18 compared to the same period in FY17. 
 



Sept 30, August 31, Increase/
2017 2017 (Decrease)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                 -$                
Interfund receivables/payables 26,675$     27,546$       (871)            
Accounts receivable -                 -                   -                  

Total current assets 26,675       27,546         (871)            
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 672,279     672,279       -                  
Equipment 86,625       86,625         -                  
Land improvements 18,584       18,584         -                  
     Less accumulated depreciation (610,082)    (610,082)      -                  

Total noncurrent assets 167,406     167,406       -                  
Total assets 194,081     194,952       (871)            

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 172$          -$                 172$           
Total liabilities 172            -                   172             

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 167,406$   167,406$     -$                
Unrestricted 26,503$     27,546$       (1,043)$       

Total net assets 193,909$   194,952$     (1,043)$       

Statement of Net Assets
Ingersoll Turf Facility
September 30, 2017

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 September 30, 2017

Ingersoll
Turf

Facility
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 7,339$            

Operating expenses:
Personnel 20,246            
Supplies
Utilities 2,213              
Repairs and maintenance 88                   
Rent -                      
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses 5,970              
Other expenses 1,076              

Total operating expenses 29,593            

Operating  gain (loss) (22,254)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer (22,254)          

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (22,254)          

Total net assets, July 1 216,163         

Total net assets, September 30, 2017 193,909$       



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET
 

CHARGE FOR SERVICES  
  Sponsorship 17,000$           2,500$                  14.71% 15,000$            3,000$                  20.00%
  Batting Cages 11,520$           110$                     0.95% 9,940$              1,625$                  16.35%
  Programs 80,000$           3,918$                  4.90% 90,000$            6,978$                  7.75%
  Rental Income 103,650$         811$                     0.78% 100,000$          1,670$                  1.67%

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 212,170$         7,339$                  3.46% 214,940$          13,273$                6.18%
  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                     -$                      

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 212,170$         7,339$                  3.46% 214,940$          13,273$                6.18%

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
REVENUES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through September 30, 2017 compared to September 30, 2016



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2017 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET Difference

  Salaries & Benefits 106,624$            20,246$                18.99% 101,899$       19,056$                18.70% 1,190$            
  Purchased Services 21,110$              1,164$                  5.51% 20,750$         3,271$                  15.76% (2,107)$           
  Programs 7,000$                0.00% 5,000$           370$                     7.40% (370)$              
  Supplies 5,000$                0.00% 6,750$           188$                     2.79% (188)$              
  Utilities 39,720$              2,213$                  5.57% 41,320$         1,716$                  4.15% 497$               
  Insurance Premiums 2,431$                -$                      0.00% 2,383$           -$                      0.00% -$                
  Capital Outlay 42,490$              5,970$                  14.05% -$               -$                       5,970$            

224,375$            29,593$                13.19% 178,102$       24,601$                13.81% 4,992$            
  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 224,375$            29,593$                13.19% 178,102$       24,601$                13.81% 4,992$           

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through September 30, 2017 compared to September 30, 2016



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for September 30, 2017 
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Norway Savings Bank Arena for revenue and expenditures as of September 30, 2017.  
 
NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets and shows a 
comparison to the previous month, in this case, August 31, 2017.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of September 2017 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were 
($844,659). These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $91,181, accounts receivable of $61,156, 
and an interfund payable of $996,996. 
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). The total value of the noncurrent assets as of September 30, 2017 was $394,783.  
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had accounts payable of $101,413 as of September 30, 2017.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through September 2017 are $227,971. This revenue comes 
from the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public 
skating and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through September 2017 were $290,877. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, rent, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
As of September 2017 Norway Arena has an operating loss of $62,906 compared to the September 2016 
operating loss of $106,337 a decrease in the operating loss for the fiscal year of $43,431. 
 
As of September 30, 2017 Norway Arena has a decrease in net assets of $62,906. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, with comparison to the same period last 
year show that revenue for FY18 is $22,816 more than in FY17 and expenditures in FY18 are $20,615 less 
than last year in September. 



September 30, August 31, Increase/
2017 2017 (Decrease)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 91,181$           91,181$        -$                    
Interfund receivables (996,996)$       (911,156)$     (85,840)$         
Prepaid Rent -$                  -$                    
Accounts receivable 61,156             81,616          (20,460)$         

Total current assets (844,659)         (738,359)       (106,300)         
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 58,223             35,905          22,318            
Equipment 514,999           417,455        97,544            
Land improvements -                       -                    -                      
     Less accumulated depreciation (178,439)         (135,157)       (43,282)           

Total noncurrent assets 394,783           318,203        76,580            
Total assets (449,876)         (420,156)       (29,720)           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,015$             -$                  1,015$            
Net pension liability 100,398           77,298          23,100            
Total liabilities 101,413           77,298          24,115            

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 394,783$        318,203$      76,580$          
Unrestricted (946,072)$       (815,657)$     (130,415)$       

Total net assets (551,289)$       (497,454)$     (53,835)$         

Statement of Net Assets
Norway Savings Bank Arena

September 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 September 30, 2017

Norway
Savings
Arena

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 227,971$       

Operating expenses:
Personnel 88,495            
Supplies 7,328              
Utilities 62,444            
Repairs and maintenance 1,423              
Rent 126,621         
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses -                      
Other expenses 4,566              

Total operating expenses 290,877         

Operating  gain (loss) (62,906)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer (62,906)          

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (62,906)          

Total net assets, July 1 (488,383)        

Total net assets, September 30, 2017 (551,289)$      



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  Concssions 18,000$            -$                     0.00% 18,000$            -$                     0.00% -$            
  Sponsorships 275,000$          81,868$                29.77% 230,000$          61,767$                26.86% 20,101$     
  Pro Shop 8,500$              502$                    5.91% 8,500$              1,628$                  19.15% (1,126)$      
  Programs 31,000$            0.00% 31,000$            0.00% -$            
  Rental Income 705,250$          112,513$              15.95% 672,250$          102,865$              15.30% 9,648$        
  Camps/Clinics 50,000$            27,838$                55.68% 50,000$            38,895$                77.79% (11,057)$    
  Tournaments 50,000$            5,250$                  10.50% 50,000$            -$                     0.00% 5,250$        

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,137,750$       227,971$              20.04% 1,059,750$       205,155$              19.36% 22,816$     
  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                     -$                     

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 1,137,750$       227,971$              20.04% 1,059,750$       205,155$              19.36% 22,816$     

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
REVENUES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through September 30, 2017 compared to September 30, 2016



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2016 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU SEPT 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU SEPT 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
 
 

  Salaries & Benefits 344,000$            88,495$                25.73% 311,000$          96,038$                30.88% (7,543)$      
  Purchased Services 71,656$              5,989$                  8.36% 87,306$            12,449$                14.26% (6,460)$      
  Supplies 37,100$              7,328$                  19.75% 37,150$            6,836$                  18.40% 492$           
  Utilities 225,150$            62,444$                27.73% 199,800$          58,380$                29.22% 4,064$       
  Capital Outlay 103,500$            -$                      0.00% 57,000$            11,168$                19.59% (11,168)$    
  Rent 507,000$            126,621$              24.97% 507,000$          126,621$              24.97% -$            

1,288,406$         290,877$              22.58% 1,199,256$       311,492$              25.97% (20,615)$    
  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,288,406$         290,877$              22.58% 1,199,256$       311,492$              25.97% (20,615)$    

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through September 30, 2017 compared to September 30, 2016



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 6, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding labor negotiations (Police - MAP), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (D). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 11-06-2017
	1  Info sheet PARKING ENFORCEMENT    FIRE LANE
	1a  MEMO PARKING ENFORCEMENT    FIRE LANE
	1b  Ordinance PARKING ENFORCEMENT    FIRE LANE
	2  Street Light Info Sheet_Sept 2017 (2)
	2a  Auburn ME Presentation 11.6.2017
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	PROJECTS AWARDED IN MAINE
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	VALUE ADDED SERVICES
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Slide Number 41
	Slide Number 42

	2b  Falmouth streetlight RFQ
	2c  Real Term Streetlight Proposal 8-11-2017
	3  dell court Info Sheet - Sept 2017 (3)
	3a  25DellCourt
	3b  25DellCourtOverview
	3c  Dell Court Deed
	4  Executive Session Info Sheet Ec Dev
	5  Info sheet CONSTABLE J Banville (2)
	5a  CONSTABLE     MEMO
	5b  Order 99-11062017 CONSTABLE BANVILLE
	6  Info sheet ROMAN forfeiture
	6a  ROMAN    MEMO
	6b  Order ROMAN  forfeiture
	7  Info Sheet ROBERTSON    Fofeiture
	7a  ROBERTSON    MEMO
	7b  Order 101-11062017 ROBERTSON
	8  Info Sheet - ASA Temp Sign Request
	8a  ASA Temp signs
	8b  Order  ASA signs
	9  Info Sheet - Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks.docx
	9b  Order 103-11062017  Wardens-Ward Clerks
	10  Minutes 10-16-2017
	11  Info Sheet  17-18 Appendices
	11a  GA Appendices A-D Sign off
	11b  Ordinance 11-10162017 GA Max
	12  Info sheet 17-18 non max ordinance
	12a  GA Non Max Sign off
	12b  Ordinance 12-10162017 GA Non Max
	13  Info sheet Troy St  Discontinuance Info Sheet REV  11-6-17 (2)
	13a  Troy St  Discontinuance Materials   11-6-17
	13b  Order 95-10162017 Troy St Discontinuance Order - New
	14  Info Sheet -homefunds10-16-17
	14a  Order 96-10162016 home funds
	15  Info sheet mou abdc revised
	15a  ABDC timeline
	15a  mou abdc supporting docs1
	15b  Order 97-10162017 mou abdc
	16  Info sheet Substantial Amendment - HOME
	16a  Public Notice - Substantial Amendment
	16b  Substantial Amendment to 2017 Action Plan
	17  Info Sheet - board and committee appointments
	17a  Boards and Committees
	3  Vacancies
	4  Applicant Spreadsheet
	Sheet1


	17b  BOA Oct 2017
	17c  Order  104-11062017 Appointment Board of Assessment
	18  Cons Comm Oct 2017
	18a  Order 105-11062017 Appointment
	19  ZBA Oct 2017
	19a  Order 106-11062017 Appointment ZBA
	20  Info Sheet Tin Tin Buffet
	20a  Tin Tin Buffet State App
	20b  Liquor License Hearing Ad -Tin Tin Buffet 2017
	20c  Order 107-11062017  Tin Tin Buffet Order
	21  Info Sheet - History Trail Signage 11 6 17
	21a  History Trail Museum in the Streets Binder 9 11 17
	1 Riverwalk History Trail Budget Proposal 5.16.17
	2 Museum in The Streets--
	3 Topics for Museum in The Streets
	4 Travel Stories Flyer 2

	21b  Order 108-11062017 History Trail Signs
	22  Info Sheet - Livestock Ordinance 11 6 17
	22a  Livestock Amendment PB Report to CC
	22b  PB Memo - Livestock - 8 9 17
	22c  Legal Notice CC 11 6 17
	22d  Ordinance 13-11062017 Livestock First Reading
	23  Info Sheet OPioid Litigation
	23a  NS Opioid Memo
	23b  NSMK-Opioids-Digital
	23c  Opioids Info Book
	Napoli Shkolnik PLLC�Government Opioids Cost Recovery Program
	The Opioid Epidemic
	The Opioid Epidemic
	The Opioid Epidemic
	The Opioid Epidemic�Costs of the Opioid Epidemic
	The Opioid Epidemic�1 in 12 Doctors Being Paid by Pharmaceuticals Marketing Opioids
	The Opioid Epidemic�Over Prescription of Opioids a ‘Fundamental Cause’ 
	The Opioid Epidemic �The OxyContin Blockbuster
	The Opioid Epidemic�Fentanyl & The Next Wave of the Opioid Epidemic
	The Opioid Epidemic�Taxpayers Footing the Bill – Naloxone Costs & Distribution
	The Opioid Epidemic �Medicare Part D Prescription Claim Costs on the Rise1
	Why File a Lawsuit?
	Why File a Lawsuit?�City or County Cause of Action is Preferable to Waiting for the State
	Why File a Lawsuit?�Previous Manufacturer or Distributor Fines
	Why File a Lawsuit?�Previous Manufacturer or Distributor Settlements
	Why File a Lawsuit?�Napoli Shkolnik is Representing Municipalities Across the Country
	Why File a Lawsuit?�Our Investment in the Government Opioid Costs Recovery Program
	Cause of Action
	Defendants
	Claims 
	Claims as to the Manufacturers
	Claims as to the Distributors 
	Relief Sought
	Working Together �To Fight the Opioid Epidemic
	About Napoli Shkolnik�Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion
	About Napoli Shkolnik�Opioid Related Media Appearances
	About Napoli Shkolnik�Principal Office

	23d  Resolve 04-11062017 Opioid litigation
	24  Final September Finance Report
	FY18 September Finance Rpt.pdf
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary

	EMS Billing breakdown fy 18 Sept.pdf
	September 2017 Summary
	Sept 2017
	Sept aging

	special revenue accounts as of 093017.pdf
	2018

	Ingersoll Turf Facility Monthly Report-September 2017.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures

	Norway Savings Bank Arena Monthly Report- September 2017.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures


	25  Executive Session Info Sheet Ec Dev



